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MILESTONES
POSITIVE RESULT OF OPERATIONS

Highlight of this improvement is the P105 million increase in WOW Savings, 
P6.3 million increase in Dream Savers and P6.4 million increase in Asenso 
Savings.

The bank has doubled the number of deposit accounts for 2018 by opening 
more than 8,000 customers or 105% increase from 2017.
 
The 135% increase in loans is due to 336% increase in Microfinance Loans, 
378% increase in Housing Loans and 52% in Small and Medium Enterprise 
Loans.  The proactive participation of the President in strengthening loans 
services resulted to a remarkable increase in the banks total loans portfolio 
and improved past due ratio.
 
The ratio of total loan portfolio over total deposit liabilities for 2018 vis-à-vis 
2017 is 18% and 14%, respectively.  
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The 75%  increase in 
deposit liabilities is due 
to 106% increase in total 
savings deposits as the 
bank launched new 
competitive deposit 
products that will 
encourage customers to 
save more and avail 
banking services as 
bank’s financial 
inclusion initiatives.  



MILESTONES
POSITIVE RESULT OF OPERATIONS

One of the biggest highlights of 
this year’s operation is the 100% 
increase in net income due to 413% 
increase in net interest income 
while the Management is in full 
effort to cut unnecessary 
administrative costs for the bank.  
The major changes comprise of 
increase in interest income from 
lending by P8.3 million or 35%, OFW 
remittance fees by P8.3 million or 
34%, interest income from 
investments by P3.7 million or 11% 
and fees and charges from deposit 
by P1.8 million or 110%.
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59% increase in total assets  is 
mainly due to P122 million increase 
in total deposit liabilities.  The ratio 
of total deposit liabilities over total 
assets of the bank for the year 2018 
and 2017 is 72% and 66% 
respectively.
 
Despite of high total assets, the 
bank maintains its liquidity ratio 
from 90-140%.  P104 million 
increase in investment and due 
from other banks and P5 million 
increase booked reserves 
contributed the bank’s liquidity 
ratio. 



MILESTONES
IMPROVED FINANCIAL RATIO
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2017

MILESTONES
NET INCOME POSITIVE

This year, our entire team prides itself in 
making a huge leap in our net income, 

compared to the previous year:

-PHP169,000
2018

PHP9,000,000
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SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS

 MORE OFW’S SERVED

Our Fast Cash Card facility connects our modern day hero OFWs to 
their families by enabling them to send their remittance in real 
time, with more convenience and less fees using the individual 
electronic banking cards that we issue to each family member. The 
same card empowers them to do cashless transactions and have a 
first-hand experience at keeping their savings in the bank.
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SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS

SOCIAL MEDIA BOOST

We recognize the power of conversations and connections that Filipinos make 
online and hence, we take pride in the exponential engagement and fanbase 
growth of our Facebook page this year.

Through our official social media accounts, we featured the stories of the thriving 
micro-entrepreneurs that we are able to help through our financing services. Since 
we have a huge local following, such features provide benefits for both sides as it 
becomes an online promotion of awareness for their business and at the same it 
also spreads news about how entrepreneur-friendly we are when it comes to 
providing our services. We believe that we do not simply give out loans but we 
actually journey with them in every stage of their business. 10



EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BLESSING OF NEW HEADQUARTERS

For more than 40 years, Pacific Ace has been wholeheartedly serving Overseas 
Filipino Workers (OFWs) in Hong Kong and Macau, as well as sea-based merchant 
marines, by enabling them to securely send their hard-earned money to their 
loved-ones in the Philippines.

Yet, we understand that for every Filipino parent who leaves the country to 
earn and work abroad, an entire family is left behind.

With the new administration's promising plans and actions for a better change, we 
are motivated to work hand-in-hand with the government. We believe that it's time 
to go full circle as we extend more of our services here in our home country in order 
to nourish the children of our OFWs and empowering their beneficiaries to stand on 
their own feet, as they gain local access to banking services that will help them build 
their own livelihood and save for a brighter future.

For every unbanked family who finally takes responsibility for their own 
financial stability and prosperity, there's an OFW who may be spared from 
further sacrifice and agony.

HOME IS WHERE OUR HEARTS WILL ALWAYS BE
The story of Pacific Ace Savings Bank’s renewed vigor

to serve the Filipino people in our home country
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BLESSING OF NEW HEADQUARTERS

The Pacific Ace Savings Bank (PASB) draws deeper inspiration from this liberating 
possibility and gathers renewed vigor to deliberately reach out to the community 
and serve the unbanked locals.

As a manifestation of this renewed vigor to serve our home country and the OFW 
beneficiaries, PASB inaugurated its renovated headquarters in Subic on 23 February 
2018.

The renovation of the PASB building began in September 2017, under the careful 
direction of the CEO herself, Mrs Virginia Dio, who flew back and forth from Hong 
Kong to Subic for at least twice a month during the initial phase and stayed in Subic 
everyday on the last 3 weeks prior to the inauguration, working fingers to the bones 
for many many long nights.

This act of dedication serves as a silent but solid inspiration to the rest of the team, a 
message that goes a long way in motivating people to get the job done.
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BLESSING OF NEW HEADQUARTERS

The company is heavily invested in this project and commissioned only the best 
suppliers. Paul Design, a prominent design firm in China who has worked with 
global brands such as Chanel, Porsche and BMW, frequently flew to Subic to 
organize and execute the architectural design.

As a testament to the bank’s thrust to recognize and empower the locals, the indoor 
amphitheater on the second floor called Banaue room was entirely hand-painted by 
a 16-year old local high school student, as assisted by her mother.
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BLESSING OF NEW HEADQUARTERS

Amidst all the heavy reconstruction work which lasted for six months, the bank was 
able to continue serving its clients daily by optimizing and compartmentalizing its 
operations. And on February 23, finally, all the hard work paid off. The blueprint on 
paper has now become a real, concrete building that is ready to welcome all 
customers with doors wide open.

To mark this day in history for the entire Pacific Ace Group, a blessing and 
inauguration event was called forth at 11 in the morning. As the new building was 
unveiled, the bank’s vision, mission and plans were concurrently announced to the 
business community and local authorities.

PASB was blessed by the presence of Honorable Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority 
Chairman Atty. Wilma Eisma, Honorable Congressman Benny Abante and 
Honorable Councilor Princess Barquia and the representatives of BDO, Sterling 
Bank, Ventaja, UCPB and PLDT among hundreds of other key partners and 
stakeholders who expressed their utmost support and enjoined the bank in 
showcasing and fulfilling its mission to reach out to the unserved members of the 
community.
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BLESSING OF NEW HEADQUARTERS

The event was made even more cheerful when everybody jumped in for the 
tradition of throwing coins for good luck :)

When everyone was in, Ms Verona Joy Dio, PASB's Chairman of the Board, delivered 
the opening message where she mentioned that "Everyone today can create their 
own wealth and eventually use that wealth to help others. I know that with 
everyone's continued support, together as partners for change, we can achieve our 
goal of bringing financial inclusion to the unbanked.”
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BLESSING OF NEW HEADQUARTERS

The entire Pacific Ace Groups is truly grateful for all of our friends and industry 
partners who went all the way to Subic to show their support.
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

BANAUI: A VERY SPECIAL MEETING ROOM

The Philippines’ Banaue Rice Terraces (Filipino: Hagdan-hagdang Palayan ng Banawe) are 
terraces that were carved into the mountains of Ifugao in the Philippines by ancestors of the 
indigenous people. It is dubbed as the "8th Wonder of the World" It is commonly thought that 
the terraces were built with minimal equipment, largely by hand. The terraces are located 
approximately 1,500 meters (4,900 feet) above sea level. They are fed by an ancient irrigation 
system from the rainforests above the terraces. It is said that if the steps were put end to end, it 
would encircle half the globe.

The story of the Banaue Rice Terraces serves as a huge inspiration to the Pacific Ace Group, so 
much so that all of its amphitheatres are designed after it. Pacific Ace Hong Kong, Pacific Ace 
Savings Bank, and soon the new Pacific Ace Building (to replace the old  Times Square Building 
that housed the bank all these years) all have its own Banaue rooms where we engage our clients, 
release loans, conduct orientations, learning sessions, presentations, team buildings, 
brainstorming sessions,  parties  and basically share great memories of working together. 
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

CELEBRATION OF FILIPINO INGENUITY

As a testament to the bank’s thrust to recognize and empower the locals, the indoor 
amphitheater on the second floor called Banaue room was entirely hand-painted by 
a 16-year old local high school student, as assisted by her mother.

The Painting of Banaue Room is done by Angelica Olesco with the help of her mom 
Lanie Olesco. The painting is done for a period of 82 days after school hours, 3-5 
hours a day, from Monday to Sunday. Their bold and vivid graphics of our famed rice 
terraces serve as a beautiful backdrop to the many uses of this unique room from 
group orientations of our clients, bank meetings and regular events under our CSR 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) initiatives. 
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

CELEBRATION OF FILIPINO INGENUITY
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

ROPA RENOVATION

To fund the various huge projects and programs that we are embarking on, we  
exerted all efforts to leave no stone unturned in ensuring that our funds circulate 
properly. To monetize our Real and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA), we scheduled 
a weekend for intensive renovation in April 2018.

After one renovation weekend, one particular ROPA house that was still for sale was 
cleaned, re-painted and re-invigorated with healthy plants and is now even more 
presentable and sale-ready.
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EVENTS & ACTIVITIES

ROPA RENOVATION

Our intensified efforts were not in vain as in the ensuing months seventy five 
percent of our ROPA properties were up for a successful purchase and taken of the 
books.
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

BANKING ON WHEELS

To provide more convenience to the busy micro-entrepreneurs that we aim to serve 
and who live outside of SBMA, we created a program where we are the ones to go 
where they are instead of asking or waiting for them to come to us. For this purpose, 
on June 2018, we launched our Banking-on-Wheels caravan where we used a 
refitted van as a mobile office that goes to public markets to advocate for our 
services and accommodate easy application process for SME loans. There is no 
money handling but the mobile banking would cover all the paper works, 
application forms and requirements in order to obtain a loan before our potential 
borrower would need to come to the bank to finish the application process with the 
interview and if successful the succeeding loan release. 
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

BANKING ON WHEELS

To date, our banking on wheels program has covered and met the vendors and 
association leaders of the following markets:

● Olongapo New Public Market, Olongapo Old Public Market
● Olongapo Pag-Asa Public Market
● Subic Market
● Castillejos Market
● San Marcelino Market
● San Antonio Market
● San Narciso Market
● San Felipe Market
● Cabanggan Market
● Botolan Market
● Iba Public Market 23



BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

ACTION GROUP AGAINST POVERTY

AGAP is at the very core of PASB's mission that is to help the underprivileged and 
the unbanked members of the local community. The Philippines is a predominantly 
poor country with about seventy percent of the population classed as living in some 
kind of level of poverty. Yet despite this statistic many major banks (specifically) do 
not service the poor that make up the majority of the nation. Working/dealing with 
the poor has been seen as difficult with some banks trying and failing to maintain 
their microfinance operations and closing it down after a few try out years in this 
sector. Pacific Ace Savings Bank is essentially a bank that was built for the poor, a 
community thrift bank that aims to service the local underprivileged, unbanked and 
those living in poverty with a particular emphasis in the Zambales and Pampanga 
area where the bank is located.  As Pacific Ace Savings Bank takes on a new and 
revitalized life in 2018 this very specific, localized and personal approach guarantees 
that the bank is able to serve the neediest of the population. 

From an initial team members of five, the AGAP department quickly expanded and 
the bank created an entirely new office and department solely dedicated to their 
specialised operations.  

So many Filipinos have the desire to asenso and move up in life, have the will to 
work hard and improve and provide for the families while always nurturing the 
dream of a good education for their children and a better future. All they lack is the 
opportunity and means to pursue these goals. This is where AGAP comes in. AGAP is 
not the bank it is our customers that we aim to serve whose own actions and will to 
lift themselves out of poverty will one day result in their own alleviation. Pacific Ace 
Savings Bank is there behind every AGAP member each step of the way in their 
process to be a part of the banking sector with all the benefits and privileges that it 
entails. The security, safety and confidentiality of our customer’s monies is 
paramount, especially to our newest clients who would previously have never been 
able to envision themselves as having a bank account or actually transacting with a 
bank. 
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

ACTION GROUP AGAINST POVERTY

For many AGAP members being part of the banking sector or having a bank 
account would never have been something that they would have considered 
possible or comfortable for them to be a part of previously. Members of AGAP will 
typically come from impoverished backgrounds and less than ideal circumstances. 
The AGAP process starts with an AGAP Development Officer (DO) canvassing a 
specific area that they have been assigned to assess the market and the need of the 
local residents. Once a group or a team of people have been identified who are 
interested to be an AGAP member in order to avail of an initial micro-loan of P6000, 
the DO will proceed to orient them on the program and the prerequisites.  After all 
the requirements have been met a final orientation precedes the group loan 
release. Throughout the entire process from the initial meeting to the disbursement 
of the loan itself, it is made clear to the members that part of the AGAP loan is a 
mandatory savings program. It may seem counterintuitive for a savings program to 
co-exist with a loan but the combination of a weekly discipline to repay the loan 
while saving at the same time could not make more sense.  The culture of the 
Filipinos is not one to save. The AGAP program inculcates this habit of saving 
regularly in order to repay the loan to be able to avail an even bigger loan amount 
on the next cycle to incentivise them.  

Pacific Ace Savings Bank’s AGAP team tirelessly goes out onto the field to speak, 
approach, counsel, support and help both existing and potential new members of 
AGAP to help them be part of the banking sector in order to support their new, 
fledgling or existing businesses, their families and ultimately their wider goals and 
dreams. 

Every AGAP loan comes 
with an AGAP passbook 
that will enable and 
encourage our members 
to save for their future, 
their families, their kids 
and their dreams!
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

ACTION GROUP AGAINST POVERTY

We believe that the right 
people are the real driving 
force towards the right 
results. In the person of Mr. 
Amado Rivera Jr., the former 
head of the now defunct 
Wings of Change 
Foundation, a charitable 
non-profit organization 
which offered assistance to 
underprivileged kids, was 
someone who shared 
AGAP’s mission and vision 
as its first head.  The 
Foundation provided 
feeding, art classes and 
livelihood training to girls 
from the Social 
Development Center and to 
boys from the Center for 
Youth, together with their 
families. Now that Wings of 
Change is no longer in 
existence these programs 
and events through Mr. 
Rivera have found a home in 
AGAP.   

With his background, Mr. 
Rivera embodies and enacts 
the purpose of the AGAP 
program that we created 
with proper skills coming 
from actual experience, and 
at the same time, sincerity 
of the heart.
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

ACTION GROUP AGAINST POVERTY

As of writing the AGAP program has been serving close to 1500 member 
microentrepreneurs who aspire to grow their businesses, and still counting.
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS

SAVINGS, LOANS & CHECKING ACCOUNTS
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS
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BANKING SERVICES & PROGRAMS
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UPDATES ON OPERATIONS

CUSTOMER CARE MOVEMENT

From Manila to Subic
Excellent customer service is indelibly inscribed in the Pacific Ace brand. Previously 
the telephone customer care was outsourced to one of the sister companies of the 
Pacific Ace Group located in the capital. To ensure the quality of service that we 
provide and for closer supervision, this year, we moved our We Care Customer Care 
Center (WCC) from the Manila office to our bank’s headquarters in Subic. 
Henceforth, our customers experienced faster turn-around time regarding their 
banking concerns as we are now all in the same complex.
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UPDATES ON OPERATIONS

PACIFIC ACE BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

We want our physical office to reflect our internal motivations and mission, hence, 
we are renovating the Pacific Ace Savings Bank complex and making way to 
accommodate the Pacific Ace Community Center. We are aiming to build as a 
testament to how much we want to uplift the clients that we serve who are mostly 
underprivileged and are below the poverty line. 

We aim to set our structure apart as we envision the new Pacific Ace Building to be 
the greenest building in SBMA and even in the entire country.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS, CAPITAL 
STRUCTURE & CAPITAL ADEQUACY

  Comparative Figures

Minimum Required Data  2018  2017

Profitability   

Total Net Interest Income       
13,358,608

         
2,604,758

Total Non-Interest Income       
19,656,603

      
10,718,061

Total Non-Interest Expense       
22,157,000

      
13,483,001

Pre-provision profit       
10,858,211

          
(160,182)

Allowance for credit losses          
2,588,532

              
36,805

Net Income/Loss          
8,269,679

          
(196,987)

   

Selected Balance Sheet Data   

Liquid Assets     
310,202,844

    
201,862,772

Gross Loans       
54,015,161

      
23,001,261

Total Assets     
393,421,199

    
248,212,909

Deposits     
285,116,871

    
162,961,069

Total Equity       
81,362,369

      
73,988,940

   

Selected Ratios   

Return on equity 11.28% 0.28%

Return on assets 2.74% 0.08%

Capital Adequacy Ratio 47.42% 31.04%

Gain per share:  

Book Value  119.44  108.62

   

Head Count   

Officers 14 12 

Staff 46  13

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

Tier 1 Capital

Paid up common stock 68,117,500

Retained earnings 4,975,190

Undivided profits 8,269,679

Total Tier 1 Capital 81,362,369

Tier 2 Capital

General loan loss provision 664,103

Total Tier 2 Capital 664,103

Gross Qualifying Capital 82,026,472

Deduction from Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital 0

Total Qualifying Capital 82,026,472

Capital requirements for credit risk 153,512,606

Capital requirements for market risk 0

Capital requirements for operational risk 19,465,500

Total and Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 
(CAR) 47.42%
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RISK MANAGEMENT ADMIN

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The bank’s Risk Management Framework focuses on eight (8) categories of risk 
namely credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, compliance, strategic and 
reputation risk.  

Level of Risk Management Defenses

Risk Management Administration

Risk management process is incorporated in the bank management system and all 
levels of operations/units involved. The respective department heads are risk owners 
and are responsible in identifying risk at their levels by regular monitoring.  To 
reduce such risks, Management focuses on improving operations and oversight 
function to ensure that while risks are decreasing, bank’s operations particularly its 
financials are continuously improving.

Definition of Risk

1. Risk is the possibility of a loss. In all its transactions, a bank faces risks - 
deposits, loans, systems and people. 

2. Risk is an uncertainty of whether events expected or otherwise will have an 
adverse impact on the bank’s capital.

3. Risk can be controlled by having a sound risk management system.

Risk Management Objectives

1. Risk management aims to give and to create value to the bank’s stakeholders.
2. Aside from ensuring high profits, risk management aims to optimize earnings 

potential. The bank does not want to mitigate risks alone, it also looking for 
business opportunities that will give a higher return from its operations.

3. Risk management aims to create an internal environment wherein employees 
have the awareness in assessing risks for institutional gain in every 
transaction.

4. Controlling risks aims to gain reputation from bank’s stakeholders and 
regulators.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ADMIN

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Risk Appetite Statement

The Risk Appetite Statement represents the individual and aggregate level and 
types of risk that a bank is willing to assume in order to achieve its business 
objectives and considering its capability to manage risk. It includes both qualitative 
and quantitative measures expressed relative to earnings, capital, risk measures, 
liquidity, and other relevant measures as appropriate.  The following risk appetite 
statement is based on risk exceptions from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, compliance, 
internal and external audit, as well as historical data that may save the bank from 
potential loss.

Credit Risk

● PASB shall not have credit exposures to DOSRI (Directors, Officers,  
Stockholders and Related Interests) and Fringe Benefits to its officers and 
employees.   

● Past due ratio of 8-10%
● Unsecured loans : not more than 50% of total loan portfolio
● Microfinance loan : at least 50% of total loan portfolio
● As per BSP regulations, maximum single borrower’s limit is 25%.  The 

Management sets limit of 20% of the bank’s net worth for each credit 
exposure.

● Due From Other Banks shall still maximize P100 million limit per bank to 
utilize excess funds in investments to reputable banks with the highest credit 
standing.

Market Risk

● Return on Equity : not lower than 10%
● Return on Assets : not lower than 3%
● Net Interest Margin : not lower than 5%
● Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio : not lower than 50%
● PASB sets to maintain positive maturity and repricing gap
● To limit long term investments more than 5 years and to focus investments 

with 30-60 days term to ensure funds are readily available
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RISK MANAGEMENT ADMIN

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Liquidity Risk

● Liquidity ratio : not lower than 90%
● Unutilized funds : invested to big banks with short terms

The Management identified top (3) three weak risk management namely:

1. Market risk or earnings due to previous years losses and low net interest 
margin, return on equity and return on assets as compared with other banks;

2. Operational risk due to high attrition rate of employees and officers holding 
sensitive position, weak succession planning, unupdated personnel policy and 
legal cases involving ex-employees of the bank; and

3. Strategic risk due to weak monitoring and actions to resolve negative 
variances in achieving business objectives and strategies.  Such risks are the 
Managements priority to improve in the succeeding years.
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The Board of Directors is responsible for:

A. Approving strategies and policies;
B. Understanding the risks;
C. Ensuring that senior management takes necessary steps to identify, measure, 

monitor, and control the risks;
D. Approving organization structure; and
E. Ensuring that senior management is monitoring the continued effectiveness 

of the internal control system.

The board of directors discusses the risk management at least quarterly and 
monthly whenever there is high risk exposures that need immediate resolution and 
attention from the management. 

Duties and Responsibilities:

The board of directors is responsible for overall current and future risk appetite, 
oversee senior management’s adherence to the risk appetite statement, and report 
on the state of risk culture of the bank.  The board shall:



RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Duties and Responsibilities:

The board of directors is responsible for overall current and future risk appetite, 
oversee senior management’s adherence to the risk appetite statement, and report 
on the state of risk culture of the bank.  The board shall:
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1. Oversee the risk management framework.  The board shall oversee the 
enterprise risk management framework and ensure that there is periodic 
review of the effectiveness of the risk management systems and recovery 
plans.  It shall ensure that corrective actions are promptly implemented to 
address risk management concerns.

2. Oversee adherence to risk appetite. The board shall ensure that the current 
and emerging risk exposures are consistent with the bank’s strategic direction 
and overall risk appetite.  It shall assess the overall status of adherence to the 
risk appetite based on the quality of compliance with the limit structure, 
policies, and procedures relating to risk management and control, and 
performance of management, among others.

3. Oversee the risk management function.  The board shall be responsible for 
the appointment/selection, remuneration, and dismissal of the board 
members.  It shall also ensure that the risk management function has 
adequate resources and effectively oversees the risk-taking activities of the 
bank.



ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

GOVERNANCE & CULTURE

Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Program is adopted to support 
governments, law enforcement agencies and international bodies such as the 
Financial Action Task Force in their efforts to combat the use of the financial system 
for the laundering of the proceeds crime and terrorism.

To ensure that the risks associated with money-laundering such as counterparty, 
reputational, operational, and compliance risks are identified, assessed, monitored 
and mitigated, the following were adopted:

1. Board of Directors – The Board has the ultimate duties and responsibilities to 
ensure full compliance with money laundering and terrorist financing 
prevention program.  As such, the board through the Compliance Office and 
Internal Audit regularly updated on the matters related to Anti-Money 
Laundering and terrorist financing compliance and risk management.

2. Compliance Office – Compliance is the main responsible for the 
management of the implementation of this Money Laundering and Terrorist 
Financing Prevention Program (MLPP) of the bank.  This includes achieving 
the bank’s goals through planning, organizing, leading, and controlling. 
Compliance office is independent and has direct access/reporting lines to 
board of directors.  The compliance office conduct regular compliance 
checking covering the evaluation of AMLA process, policies and procedures in 
the customer identification and acceptance, reporting of Covered and 
Suspicious Transactions, and monitoring systems and record retention. Senior 
management and board of directors are consistently informed on the 
non-compliance of the Bank to money laundering and terrorist prevention 
program including management action to address deficiencies.  Compliance 
Office shall Inform all responsible officers and employees of all issuances by 
the BSP and AMLC; alert the president, board of directors and audit 
committee if it believes that the bank is failing to appropriately address AMLA 
issues and organize the timing and content of AML training of officers and 
employees including regular refresher trainings. 

3. President – In order to ensure consistent and full compliance with money 
laundering and terrorist financing prevention program, the President is also 
responsible to monitor the compliance of CASA department and other 
concerned units in Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing.
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ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

GOVERNANCE & CULTURE

Board of Directors

President

Bank Manager Chief Compliance Officer Internal Auditor

Audit Committee
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Albeit the bank has low risk exposures with Anti-Money Laundering Act as it 
primarily serves the unbanked, underprivileged and below poverty line members of 
the local community in Olongapo, Zambales and Bataan, as well as the long-time 
Overseas Filipino Worker (OFW) customers in Hong Kong and Macau who are 
profiled as “Low risk customers”, the Bank has observed strict compliance with AML 
to ensure that the Bank has no opportunity to be an avenue of money laundering 
and terrorist financing. The Bank retains 98% of the customers as low risk, while the 
remaining 2% are properly identified and monitored.  

Overall, AMLA risk management rating from the recent BSP examination has 
improved to “3” considering the significant improvement  and effort to maintain 
customer records and strengthened front-liners to conduct proper customer due 
diligence or “Know-Your-Customer”. There is also a committed Compliance Officer 
to equip Bank employees, senior management and outsourced counterparties with 
AMLA updates necessary to combat money laundering and terrorist financing. 

 
The Bank is relying with outsourced counter parties such as Pacific Ace Forex HK 
Ltd. and LBC Express Inc. to conduct “face-to-face” interview and card releasing for 
remittance account holders.  

In compliance with BSP Circular No. 1022, 2018 implementing rules and regulations 
and AMLC Resolution No. 148, the Bank is digitizing all customer records and has 
updated the AML policies and procedures.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

STRUCTURE & PRACTICES

The board of directors, management, employees, and shareholders have the big role 
to maintain sound strategic business management. The board of directors shall lead 
the bank to create awareness and observance of the principles of good corporate 
governance.  It shall be the board’s responsibility to foster the long-term success of 
the bank and assure its sustained competitiveness in a manner consistent with its 
fiduciary responsibility, which shall exercise in the best interest of the bank, its 
shareholders, and other stakeholders.  The board shall conduct itself with utmost 
honesty and integrity in the discharge of its duties, functions, and responsibilities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Name Position
Type of 

Directorship

Years 
served 

as 
director

No. of 
shares

%

1 Verona Joy S. Dio Chairman
Non-
executive

4 years 357,738 29.81%

2 Virginia S. Dio
Director/
President

Executive 17 years 480,000 40.00%

3 Roldan P. Escala Director Executive 4  years 10 0.00%

4
Maria Fatima P. 
Teng Gui

Independent 
Director

Non-
executive

3 years 1 0.00%

5
Atty. Maria 
Zenaida O. Acorda

Independent 
Director

Non-
executive

1 0.00%
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MAJOR DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Oversee the nomination process for members of the board of directors and for 

positions appointed by the board of directors. The board reviews and 
evaluates the qualifications of all persons nominated to the board of directors 
as well as those nominated to other positions requiring appointment by the 
board of directors such as President and equivalent rank and heads of 
department. The board shall also discuss matters pertaining to the 
assignment to members of the board of directors and audit committee, as 
well as succession plan for the members of the board of directors and senior 
management.

2. Oversee the continuing education program for the board of directors. The 
board shall ensure allocation of sufficient time, budget and other resources for 
the continuing education of directors, and draw on external expertise as 
needed. The committee shall establish and ensure effective implementation 
of policy for on-boarding/orientation program for first time directors and 
annual continuing education for all directors.  For this purpose, the orientation 
program for first time directors shall be for at least eight (8) hours, while the 
annual continuing training shall be at least for four (4) hours. The training 
programs should cover topics relevant in carrying out their duties and 
responsibilities as directors.

3. Oversee the performance evaluation process. The committee shall oversee the 
periodic evaluation of contribution and performance (e.g., competence, 
candor, attendance, preparedness and participation) of the board of directors, 
board-level committees, and senior management. Internal guidelines shall be 
adopted that address the competing time commitments of directors serving 
on multiple boards.

4. Oversee the design and operation of the remuneration and other incentives 
policy. The committee shall ensure that the remuneration and other 
incentives policy is aligned with operating and risk culture as well as with the 
strategic and financial interest of Bank, promotes good performance and 
conveys acceptable risk taking behavior defined under its Code of Ethics, and 
complies with legal and regulatory requirements. It shall work closely with the 
BSFI’s risk oversight committee in evaluating the incentives created by the 
remuneration system. In particular, the risk oversight committee shall 
examine whether incentives provided by the remuneration system take into 
consideration risk, capital, and likelihood and timing of earnings. Moreover, it 
shall monitor and review the remuneration and other incentives policy 
including plans, processes and outcomes to ensure that it operates and 
achieves the objectives as intended.
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MAJOR BOD FUNCTIONS

The board of directors’ primary goal is to maintain trust and confidence within the 
Bank.  Directors shall act in a manner characterized by transparency, accountability 
and fairness.  Directors are primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the 
implementation of the bank’s strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate 
governance, and corporate values.  They are also responsible in overseeing the 
performance of senior management in as far as managing the day to day affairs of 
the bank.  The Board shall approve policies on all major business activities such as 
investments, loans, assets and liability management, trust, business plan and 
budget.  Moreover, defining the Bank’s level of risk tolerance and mechanism to 
monitor in such business activities shall form part of its responsibilities. 

● Defines the corporate culture and values;
● Approves objectives and strategies and overseeing management’s 

implementation
● Appoints and selects senior management, principal officers and 

remuneration and incentives of employees
● Approves and oversees implementation of the corporate governance 

framework;
● Approves and oversees the implementation of the risk governance framework

The Chairperson
The Chairperson of the board of directors shall provide leadership in the board of 
directors. She shall ensure effective functioning of the board of directors, including
maintaining a relationship of trust with members of the board of directors. 
Moreover, she shall:
 

● Ensure holding of regular Board meeting and relevant matters are covered;
● Ensure that the meeting agenda focuses on strategic matters including 

discussion on risk appetites and key governance concerns;
● Ensure a sound decision making process;
● Encourage and promote critical discussion;
● Ensure that dissenting views can be expressed and discussed within the 

decision-making process;
● Ensure that members of the board of directors receives accurate, timely, and 

relevant information;
● Ensure the conduct of proper orientation for first time directors and provide 

training opportunities for all directors; and
● Ensure conduct of performance evaluation of the board of directors at least 

once a year 42
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MAJOR BOD FUNCTIONS

The President 
● Overall champion of bank’s operations;
● Sets the tone of good governance from the top management;
● Oversees the day-to-day management of the bank;
● Ensures that duties are effectively delegated to the staff and to establish a 

management structure that promotes accountability and transparency;
● Promotes and strengthens check and balance system in the bank;
● Approves significant and material bank transactions

The Director 
● Remains fit and proper for the position for the duration of his term;
● Conducts fair business transactions with the bank and to ensure that personal 

interest does not bias board decisions,
● Acts honestly and in good faith, with loyalty and in the best interest of the 

bank, its stockholders, and other stakeholders such as its depositors, investors, 
borrowers, other clients and general public;

● Devotes time and attention necessary to properly discharge their duties and 
responsibilities;

● Acts judiciously;
● Contributes significantly to the decision-making process of the board;
● Exercises independent judgment;
● Understands the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the bank, 

including the content of its articles of incorporation and by-laws, the 
requirements of BSP and other regulatory agencies;

● Observes confidentiality

**Independent directors and chairman are non-executive and are not part of 
bank’s day-to-day operation
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BOD QUALIFICATIONS

Our Directors Their Qualifications and Experiences

Verona Joy S. Dio
Chairman
Filipino, 40 years old

Ms. Dio is a director since 2015 up to present.  She received 
formal confirmation from BSP as Chairman of the bank since 
2017.  She completed the seminar on Corporate Governance, 
Risk Management, Credit Risk Management and AMLA Law.  
Stockholder in Pacific Ace Management Corporation, 
Westdale Philippines, Inc. and Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corp.

Virginia S. Dio
President/Director
Filipino, 70 years old

Mrs. Dio is a President/Chairman of PASB since 2002.  She is 
also an owner and CEO of other Pacific Ace companies in the 
Philippines, Hong Kong and Macau.  Her expertise is 
primarily in managing Pacific Ace Group of Companies both 
in the Philippines and Hong Kong.  She is the founder of 
Pacific Ace Her Cause Foundation. She finished BS 
Commerce Major in Accounting at the University of the East.  
She attended seminars on Management, Corporate 
Planning, Thrift Banking Operations, Corporate Governance, 
AMLA, Customer Service and Emergency Preparedness.

Roldan P. Escala
Director
Filipino, 46 years old

Mr. Escala is a director for 4 years.  He is holding a concurrent 
position as manager at Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corporation.  
Stockholder in Westdale Philippines, Inc. and Pacific Ace 
Subic Bay Corp.

Maria Fatima P. Teng Gui
Independent Director
Filipino, 40 years old

Ms. Teng gui is a director and Audit Committee Chairman for 
3 years.  She is an owner of TG&P Ventures, TGP Gas Station 
and TG&P Business Ventures Inc.  Her expertise is primarily in 
internal audit and controls.

Atty. Maria Zenaida
O. Acorda
Independent Director
Filipino, 57 years old

Atty. Acorda has specialization in Legal Risk Management.  
She is a Lawyer-Partner at Ongkiko Manhit Custodio & 
Acorda, Ongkiko Kalaw Manhit & Acorda and Ongkiko Bucoy 
Dizon & Associates.  She is Trustee at Phil. Institute of 
Arbitrators, Inc.  She finished her Bachelor of Laws and MBA 
degree in UP Diliman and Masters in Public Admin. In 
Harvard University.
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SELECTION PROCESS

1. The board of directors is informed of the need to conduct 
selection/nomination at least three months before the position will be vacated 
or replaced.

2. Nomination will be forwarded to the HR personnel who then will forward to 
the board of directors.

3. Personal interview will be conducted by the Chairman and the President in 
whatever means either “face-to-face” or electronic interview.

4. The board of directors shall assign director to collaborate with HR personnel to 
document the qualifications or to conduct “fit and proper test”.

Fit and Proper Test considers integrity, physical and mental fitness; relevant 
education, financial literally and trainings; knowledge and experience; skills, 
diligence and independence of mind; and sufficiency of time to fully carry out 
responsibilities

5. The assigned  director shall prepare reports and conduct deliberation based 
on the selection criteria as to who shall be the shortlist nominees. 

6. Result of the deliberation shall be submitted to the board of directors for 
review and approval until the appointment is formalized in the next board 
meeting.

7. For appointed directors, officers with ranked SVP and up, compliance head 
and internal audit head, the compliance officer shall then comply with the 
submission of the bio-data and other relevant documentation to prove 
qualifications and none of the disqualifications to the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas within 20 banking days after appointment.

8. Appointed director shall attend the Corporate Governance Seminar to any 
accredited training provider of the BSP before final submission of request for 
confirmation with the BSP.
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PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

The board approved Performance Evaluation Program for Board, audit committee 
and outsourced counter parties which are performed at least annually and 
employees at least semi-annually.  The performance evaluation aims to assess 
bank’s manpower compliments and also used by the Management to determine 
the salary increment of each employee based on their performance rating, if any.  
The Management’s evaluation for outsourced third parties determined whether to 
continue their service or hire another third party.

BASIS OF ASSESSMENT

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors shall be responsible in ensuring the effectiveness and due 
observance of the BSP regulations on Corporate Governance. It shall include 
overseeing periodic performance evaluation of the board and audit committee 
including executive management. An annual self-assessment shall be conducted 
using performance rating code from 1 - 5 to assess their performance in accordance 
with the following criteria:

1. How well has the Board done its job
2. How well has the Board conducted itself
3. Relationship with the chairman of the board
4. Feedback to the chairman of the board
5. Self-Assessment, viz:

a. Performance of duties and responsibilities as a board member
b. Meeting attendance
c. Reading and keeping minutes and meeting notices
d. Familiarity in by-laws and bank policies
e. Participation in the board meeting
f. Confidentiality

g. Conflict of interest

The result of the evaluation should be discussed with the Board who will be 
responsible in deciding whether each director has been adequately carrying out his 
duties using the criteria stated in the evaluation form.

The result of the evaluation shall be the basis of the Board in recommending 
continuing education of directors and succession plan for the board members and 
senior officers.  Self-evaluation shall be conducted annually and result thereof shall 
be reported during the Annual Stockholders and Board Meeting in March of the 
subsequent year. 46
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PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

Officers and Staff
Pacific Ace Savings Bank conducts Performance Evaluation for all regular 
employees at least semi-annually.  Performance Evaluation is divided into 2 parts - 
self-evaluation and OIC performance appraisal report.  Results of evaluation is 
forwarded to Human Resource Department for discussion with the President and/or 
board of directors.  

Self-evaluation consists of Productivity, Teamwork, Organization/Planning, Time 
Management, Problem Solving/Communications, Attendance and Basic Skills. 

OIC Appraisal Report consists of the following:
1. Job Knowledge
2. Communication
3. Problem Solving
4. Productivity
5. Quality of Work
6. Planning and Organization Effectiveness 
7. Teamwork
8. Dependability
9. Enthusiasm towards work challenges

10. Creativity in concepts, creations and output
11. Punctuality in work output and in attendance
12. Involvement in crimes and losses of the company
13. Teamwork and collaboration
14. Values and respect to others
15. Honesty
16. Technical Skills

Performance Evaluation affects employees salaries, promotions, staffing and 
succession planning, manpower requirements and employees drive to improve 
work effectiveness and efficiency.  Performance Evaluation is also being used for 
regularization of probationary employees.
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DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

Name of Directors
Board Meetings

Audit Committee
Meetings

Attended % Attended %

1 Verna Joy S. Dio 12 100% 4 100%

2 Virginia S. Dio 12 100%   

3 Roldan P. Escala 12 100% 4 100%

4 Ma. Fatima P. Teng Gui 12 100% 4 100%

5 Maria Zenaida O. Acorda* 2 66.67%

6 Reynante S. Banico** 6 66.67% 2 66.67%

Total No. of Meetings Held 
During the Year 12  4  

*Appointed in October 2018
**Resigned in September 2018
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee is composed of non-executive Chairman and three regular 
members, one of which is an executive and two are non-executive.

Name of Directors Audit Committee

1 Maria Fatima P. Teng Gui Chairman

2 Atty. Maria Zenaida O. Acorda* Member

3 Roldan P. Escala Member

4 Verona Joy S. Dio Member

1. Oversee the financial reporting framework. AC shall oversee the financial 
reporting process, practices, and controls. It shall ensure that the reporting 
framework enables the generation and preparation of accurate and comprehensive 
information and reports.

2. Monitor and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 
system. AC shall oversee the implementation of internal control policies and 
activities. It shall also ensure that periodic assessment of the internal control system 
is conducted to identify the weaknesses and evaluate its robustness considering the 
bank’s risk profile and strategic direction.

3. Oversee the internal audit function. AC shall be responsible for the 
appointment/selection, remuneration, and dismissal of internal auditor. It shall 
review and approve the audit scope and frequency. The committee shall ensure that 
the scope covers the review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls, 
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management 
system. The committee shall functionally meet with the head of internal audit and 
such meetings shall be duly minuted and adequately documented. AC shall then 
review and approve the performance and compensation of the head of internal 
audit, and budget of the internal audit function.

*Appointed in September 2018
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

4. Oversee the external audit function. AC shall be responsible for the 
appointment, fees, and replacement of external auditor. It shall review and approve 
the engagement contract and ensure that the scope of audit likewise cover areas 
specifically prescribed by the Bangko Sentral and other regulators.

5. Oversee implementation of corrective actions. AC shall receive key audit reports, 
and ensure that senior management is taking necessary corrective actions in a 
timely manner to address the weaknesses, non-compliance with policies, laws, and 
regulations and other issues identified by auditors and other control functions.

6. Investigate significant issues/concerns raised. AC shall have explicit authority to 
investigate any matter within its terms of reference, have full access to and 
cooperation by management, and have full discretion to invite any director or 
executive officer to attend its meetings.

7. Establish whistleblowing mechanism. AC shall establish and maintain 
mechanisms by which officers and staff shall, in confidence, raise concerns about 
possible improprieties or malpractices in matters of financial reporting, internal 
control, auditing or other issues to persons or entities that have the power to take 
corrective action. It shall ensure that arrangements are in place for the independent 
investigation, appropriate follow-up action, and subsequent resolution of 
complaints.
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ORIENTATION & EDUCATION PROGRAM

Upon appointment of a new director, the Chairman ensures orientation of duties 
and responsibilities as well as qualifications and grounds for disqualifications as 
previously mentioned.  First time directors have to attend Corporate Governance 
Seminar from qualified external training provider.  Compliance and Internal Audit 
Head shall attend trainings and seminars on risk-based compliance and internal 
audit approach and other related external trainings.  The Management shall allocate 
budget to provide key officers trainings and seminars relevant to their roles, duties 
and responsibilities.  
 
The President determines the internal and external trainings to be provided for each 
employee.  Officers holding sensitive positions such as compliance head, internal 
audit head, chief accountant, chief IT, loans and AGAP officers and credit 
investigator are required to attend external trainings relevant to their duties and 
responsibilities.  Approved in-house and external trainings are all paid by the bank.  
Mostly, trainings are being presented by the HR department and compliance office 
and the Management identifies and assigns employees who need to attend the 
trainings.  The Management conducts in-house trainings whenever the 
Management believes that the majority if not all shall attend trainings such as AMLA 
updates and emergency preparedness.  
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RETIREMENT & SUCCESSION POLICY

Independent directors may only serve for a maximum cumulative term of (9) nine 
years.  The bank does not set retirement limit for board of directors and president as 
long as senior officers are still qualified to perform their duties and responsibilities 
and passed the fit and proper test and minimum requirement in the board meeting 
attendance.  The Management is also improving the retirement benefit program to 
encourage bank employees to stabilize their employment with the bank for more 
than five (5) years.

The Bank has adopted a succession plan in case of temporary and permanent 
absences of officers and employees holding critical positions to ensure that the 
operations are not affected and oversight functions are relevant to the business 
operations.  
 
As the bank expands its operations, the board of directors ensures that the review of 
the succession planning process is being done.  This is in preparation for filling up of 
vacancies brought about by expansion, promotion, retirement, among others.  This 
succession plan is created is to ensure that qualified employees are recruited and 
developed to fill each key role within the bank.
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POLICY ON REMUNERATION, DIVIDENDS

REMUNERATION POLICY

Board of directors are not given salaries other than allowance and per diem for every 
meeting attended to ensure that the Management does not take advantage of the 
bank’s funds.  Allowance shall be identified and approved by the board of directors 
depending on the overall bank performance.  The bank’s most highly compensated 
officers are the President, Chief IT, Chief Compliance Officer and Chief Accountant.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The basis of dividend declaration is from the income of the previous years and the 
capital adequacy ratio not less than the regulatory requirement and not far from the 
industry ratio.  This year, the Bank has not declared dividend.

STRUCTURE OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE FUNCTION
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SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTION

Internal Auditor
Under the direct supervision of the Audit Committee, the Internal Audit evaluates 
and ensures the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of the Bank. The 
Internal Audit Department is mandated to conduct financial audit, compliance 
audit, operations audit, management audit, and information system audit. It also 
holds full access rights to all activities, information, records, properties, and 
personnel relevant to the internal audit activity.

External Auditor
Romeo G. Torno & Co., CPAs (RGT), is the authorized External Auditors of the Bank for 
2018. It presents an audit plan to the Audit Committee and performs audit risk 
assessment. It also reviewed the internal audit report and compliance with 
accounting standards and regulatory requirements.

Compliance System
The Bank’s compliance system was designed to identify and mitigate business risks, 
which may erode the franchise value of the bank. Business risks include but not 
limited to the following:

● Risks to reputation that arise from internal decisions that may damage a 
bank’s market standing;

● Risks to reputation that arise from internal decision and practices that 
ultimately impinge on the public trust of a bank;

● Risks from the action of a bank that are contrary to the existing regulations 
and identified best practices and reflect weaknesses in the implementation of 
codes of conduct and standard of good practice; and

● Legal risks to the extent that changes in the interpretation or provisions of 
regulations directly affect the bank’s business model.

The Compliance Department is responsible for ensuring that the Bank complies 
with the requirements, policies, circulars, and guidelines issued by BSP, PDIC, BIR, 
SBMA, SEC and other government agencies. It is headed by a Chief Compliance 
Officer (CCO), which is appointed by the Bank’s board of directors and directly 
reporting to the BOD.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee regularly review the Internal audit and 
compliance program and shall then assigned schedules of internal control based on 
risk prioritization.  It also monitors and assess the timely resolution of the risk 
exceptions noted by the compliance officer, internal and external auditors. 54
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. The Bank’s related party transactions for the year are the following:
a. Annual rent paid to Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corporation amounting to 

P1,121,148
b. Annual rent paid to Pacific Ace Management Corporation amounting to 

P176,842.08

In order to ensure that related party transactions are arm’s length, rates are 
approved by the Management before the contracts are being made and 
effective.

2. The Bank has neither material related-party transactions nor loans to DOSRI 
(Directors, Officers, Stockholders and Related Interest) for the year;

3. The Bank’s threshold for material RPT is P2 million;

4. The Bank has no remuneration and other incentives program for directors and 
executive officer;

5. It is the responsibility of the Management to ensure that material RPTs are 
minimal and controlled and that conglomerates and DOS do not take 
advantage on the interests in the bank.
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CSR: BLESSING AFTER BLESSING

Only four hours after the suit and tie event that was the 
blessing of the new Pacific Ace Savings Bank 
headquarters, the entire group had its boots on. All of 
the PASB team, including managers and key members 
of the Pacific Ace Hong Kong and Macau units who 
flew in all the way to Subic, put their hands together to 
throw a huge party for the ultimate beneficiary of all 
our hard work-- children from the streets and various 
orphanage and foundations.

A thousand smiles, burps and giggles filled the hall as 
the kids enjoyed unlimited ice cream, popcorn, 
sandwich, hotdogs, chicken, spaghetti and many many 
more delicious food. The group didn’t stop at feeding 
them but also arranged for their entertainment. A 
puppet and magic show plus fun and educational 
games were also enjoyed by the kids for two hours.

Magic!
Kuya Magnifico and his puppet Koko brought laughter 
and giggles to the gang, with their funny antics and 
amazing magic show!

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Welcome to the party!

What's a party without 
balloons? At the PASB party, 
every kid got his/her own 
balloon and some got 'em 
shaped too!
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Art Attack!
Kids were able to show off their creativity and 
play with colors at the face painting station

Who wants Ice Cream?
They say that you can't eat ice cream and be 
sad at the same time. At the PASB party, 
everyone was just... happy!
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Let’s play, dance and learn!
To make it a more meaningful day for the 
kids, the Pacific Ace group also prepared fun 
and educational games and activities for 
everyone!

There was that wacky time on animal sounds, 
a memory game and lots of groovy dancing!

Today, no one is hungry!
The Pacific Ace Group made sure that 
"hungry" will not be part of the kids' 
vocabulary that day. From the welcome 
snacks, ice cream, popcorn, sandwiches, 
spaghetti, hot dogs up to the full dinner-- 
all meals were served unsparingly.
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The giving never stops!
After eating dinner and before going 
home, the kids also got their goodie bags 
with educational and useful items inside!

A picture is worth a thousand words.
After all of it, the real highlight of the day 
were the priceless, smiling eyes of these 
precious and beautiful children...
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As the historic day ended, the rest of the story began.. In its new era, 
PASB has re-calibrated and further enhanced their services in order 
to serve the community most appropriately.

The story of our lifelong partnership for change had just began. 
Regularly the  PASB team plans out huge outreach programs for the 
children within the community…

The next time around, PASB will not only entertain them for a day, 
but also educate and equip them for greater heights in life.
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CSR: PAHER - AGAP CENTER

On September 29, 2018 we inaugurated the new PAHER / AGAP Center in New 
Cabalan. PAHER is the acronym for the Pacific Ace Her Cause Foundation whose 
meaning is: 

P - acific
A - ce
H - ealth
E - ducation
R - esearch

C - ommunity
A - id to the 
U - nderprivileged through 
S - elf
E - mployment

The creation of AGAP and the pre-existing PAHER Foundation go hand in hand. 
AGAP’s mission is to empower the poor and arm them with previously inaccessible 
banking tools.  PAHER’s focus is on the next generation, the children and kids of 
AGAP members, many of whom come from severely, disadvantaged backgrounds, 
who can be helped through education, extra support and financial assistance. 

To be closer to our AGAP members in the community we built a center in New 
Cabalan under the PAHER and AGAP banner. The mini-compound consists of a 
welcoming cultivated garden, a meeting space and community hall, the AGAP 
office, a library of books, a room for computers and studying, a piano in the lounge, 
kitchen, play area and living space for the use and enjoyment of AGAP members, 
their families and children. 

The opening of the center in September 2018 was a celebration and salo-salo of 
food, performances from some of the members and their children, blessing of the 
space and most importantly it was an introduction of the Foundation and AGAP to 
the local community it aims to serve and its AGAP members. No Filipino gathering 
would be complete without food so of course everyone was well fed and busog! by 
the end. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

61



CSR: PAHER - AGAP CENTER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

62



CSR: PAHER - AGAP CENTER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

63



A Christmas Blowout

For Christmas 2018, we gathered as many of the our AGAP members as possible and 
threw a series of Christmas parties filled with games, dancing, singing, parol 
competitions, awards and gift-giving. One of the highlights were the stories we 
heard from AGAP members themselves who testified as to how the AGAP program 
has helped them live better lives and pursue their dreams of business. Their stories 
affirm and fuel us to keep going and strive to serve more families like theirs, in order 
to spread hope, action and alternatives against poverty.

CSR: PAHER - AGAP CENTER
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CSR: OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pacific Ace Savings Bank, in collaboration with Pacific Ace Her Cause Foundation 
(PAHER) aims to contribute to the Filipino people through Health, Education, 
Research, Community Aid to the Underprivileged and Self Employment programs.  
The Foundation is led by the bank’s President, Mrs. Dio whose primary mission is to 
support children with high potential to become professionals who will make a 
positive difference in our country someday. Selected beneficiaries are receiving full 
support and educational funding from this project in order to ensure their success 
in their studies and proper exposure to more opportunities, even in the global arena.

The community center which is located in New Cabalan, Olongapo City is a 
conducive place for learning as it is surrounded with a beautiful garden, a play place, 
a huge library of books, a computer room and a community hall where they can 
come together for tutoring sessions and other events.

Pacific Ace Savings Bank is also conducting various activities such as feeding 
program, outreach program with children from various charitable institutions in 
Olongapo and gift giving.
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CSR: REGULAR FEEDING SESSIONS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PAHER / AGAP regularly holds feeding sessions to feed the children of poorer 
families and the children of its AGAP members. On July 29, 2018 we held one of our 
many feeding sessions at New Cabalan, Olongapo CIty. On this instance we fed 47 
children, handed out giveaways and school supplies and played games with them.
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CONSUMER PROTECTION

STRUCTURE

To ensure that inherent consumer protection risks are identified, measured, 
monitored and controlled, the Bank adopted Consumer Protection Risk 
Management System particularly on disclosure and transparency, protection of 
customer information, fair treatment, financial education and formulation of 
consumer assistance management. Likewise, this system will ensure the bank’s 
adherence to consumer protection standards, compliance with consumer 
protection laws, rules, and regulations.

Board of Directors
The board is responsible for developing and maintaining a sound consumer 
protection risk management system (CPRMS) that is integrated into the overall 
framework for the entire product and service life-cycle.  The board and senior 
management should periodically review the effectiveness of the CPRMS, including 
how findings are reported and whether the audit mechanisms in place enable 
adequate oversight.  The quality and timeliness of the information provided to the 
board and senior management regarding the bank's CPRMS are especially 
important for assessing the program's effectiveness.  The board and senior 
management must also ensure that sufficient resources have been devoted to the 
program. The ability to achieve the consumer protection objectives depends, in 
large part, on the authority and independence of the individuals directly responsible 
for implementing the CPRMS and for performing audit/review activities, and the 
support provided by the board and senior management. The board and senior 
management must also make certain that CPRMS weaknesses are addressed and 
corrective actions are taken in a timely manner.

Compliance Program
A well planned, implemented, and maintained consumer protection compliance 
program should prevent or reduce regulatory violations and protect consumers 
from non-compliance and associated harms and loss.  This program lead by 
compliance office was adopted to guide all the staff, officers, management and the 
board of directors in ensuring the bank’s adherence to consumer protection 
standards, compliance with consumer protection laws, rules and regulations.
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CONSUMER PROTECTION

STRUCTURE

Internal Audit Function
Independent of the compliance function, the bank’s audit function should review its 
consumer protection practices, adherence to internal policies and procedures, and 
compliance with existing laws, rules and regulations. The bank’s internal audit of the 
bank business units/functions should include the consumer protection audit 
program. A well-designed and implemented consumer protection audit program 
ensures that the board and audit committee shall be able to make an assessment 
on the effectiveness of implementation as well as adequacy of approved policies 
and standards in meeting the established consumer protection objectives.

Training
Continuing education of personnel about consumer protection laws, rules and 
regulations as well as related bank policies and procedures is essential to 
maintaining a sound consumer protection compliance program. PASB should 
ensure that all relevant personnel specifically those whose roles and responsibilities 
have customer interface, receive specific and comprehensive training that 
reinforces and helps implement written policies and procedures on consumer 
protection. The bank should institute a consumer protection training program that 
is appropriate to its organization structure and the activities it engages. The training 
program should be able to address changes in consumer protection laws, rules and 
regulations and policies and procedures and should be provided in a timely manner.

Policies and Procedures
A. be consistent with consumer protection policies approved by the board;
B. ensure that consumer protection practices are embedded in the bank’s 

business operations;
C. address compliance with consumer protection laws, rules, and regulations; 

and
D. reviewed periodically and kept-to-date as it serve as reference for employees 

in their day-to-day activities.
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CONSUMER PROTECTION

CONSUMER ASSISTANCE
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CAMS)

The bank recognizes the major role of customer in achieving its objective of a stable 
banking operation apart from being the reason of its existence as part of the Bank’s 
goal of financial inclusion alleviation. In support also to the initiative of BSP towards 
bringing a strong and stable financial system, it is the policy of the bank to support 
the protection of customer’s rights at all times.

The main objective of the policy is to obtain 100% clients satisfaction on products 
and services of Bank, develop customer care service, and to be more aware of the 
needs of members and become proactive in addressing future demands and 
concerns.

There is a dedicated department handling consumer protection called “We Care 
Center” lead by a WCC Head with (4) four WCC staff equipped with skills relevant in 
handling customer concerns and complaints.  WCC Head is directly reporting to the 
President to ensure that senior management is up to date with the bank’s CAMS.  

WCC is committed to solve each customer concern within the timeline set in the 
bank’s CAMS.

Customer complaints shall be recorded in the complaint database used to monitor 
timely resolution of complaints and assessment to control increasing number of 
identical complaints.
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

PRESIDENT AND KEY OFFICERS

Name Position Qualifications

Virginia S. Dio
Filipino, 70 years old

President Mrs. Dio is a President/Chairman of PASB since 2002.  She 
is also an owner and CEO of other Pacific Ace companies 
in the Philippines, Hongkong and Macau.  Her expertise is 
primarily in managing Pacific Ace Group of Companies 
both in the Philippines and Hongkong.  She is the founder 
of Pacific Ace Her Cause Foundation. She finished BS 
Commerce Major in Accounting at the University of the 
East.  She attended seminars on Management, Corporate 
Planning, Thrift Banking Operations, Corporate 
Governance, AMLA, Customer Service and Emergency 
Preparedness.

Atty. March Jefferson M. 
Fernandez
Filipino, 35 years old

Corporate Secretary Atty. Fernandez is Corporate Secretary since 2017.  He is 
also a legal counsel of Pacific Ace Management, Pacific 
Asia Overseas Shipping Corp and Pacific Ace Housing and 
Devt Corp.  He has more than 3 years experience as a legal 
associate in a law firm.  He finished his Bachelor of Laws at 
San Beda College of Laws and BS Political Science at the 
University of the Philippines.  He attended seminars on 
Corporate Governance and AML Law.   He is a stockholder 
with Pacific Ace Recovery and Collection Inc. and PASB.

Monciar P. Elenzano
Filipino, 26 years old

Chief Compliance 
Officer

Mr. Elenzano is appointed as Chief Compliance Officer 
since January 2017.  He has 2 years experience as an 
internal auditor in a commercial bank and 1 year 
experience as an external auditor.  He is an active member 
of the Association of Bank Compliance Officers since 2018. 
He finished BS in Accountancy at Polytechnic University of 
the Philippines and became a CPA in 2014.  He is 
conducting in-house AMLA courses in PASB.  He attended 
seminars on Compliance Officer Development, Corporate 
Governance, AML Law, Train Law, SEC Updates and other 
related trainings. 

Daisy L. Pernia
Filipino, 28 years old

Acting Internal Audit 
Head

Ms. Pernia finished BS in Accountancy at Kolehiyo ng 
Subic.  She acts as Internal Audit Trainee under Audit 
Committee and supervised by the Compliance Officer.  
She attended seminars on AML Law, Customer Service 
and Disaster Risk Management. She has accounting 
experience in different industries for 7 years. 
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

PRESIDENT AND KEY OFFICERS

Name Position Qualifications

Grace S. Lanza
Filipino, 30 years old

Chief Accountant Ms. Lanza has 8 years total experience as Chief 
Accountant and 1 year as an internal auditor in rural and 
thrift bank.  She was appointed as Chief Accountant in 
PASB since 2017.  She finished BS in Accountancy at 
Mondriaan Aura College.  She attended seminars in AML 
Law, SEC Updates, PhilPass, Accounting, IT and Internal 
Audit.

Juvi-Lyne A. Vega
Filipino, 25 years old

Bank Operations Head Ms. Vega was appointed as Assistant Internal Auditor in 
2017 and as Bank Operation Head in 2018.  She finished BS 
in Accountancy at Columban College Inc. She attended 
AML Law, SEC Updates and Signature Verification and 
Identifying Counterfeit Currencies.  

Emman Lloyd P. Arcillas
Filipino, 29 years old

Acting Credit and 
Loans Head

Mr. Arcillas is appointed as Acting Loans Officer and Loan 
Counselor since 2018. He has more than 2 years 
experience as GL bookkeeper in rural bank. He finished BS 
in Accountancy at Columban College.  He attended 
seminars in AML Law.

Amado I. Rivera, Jr.
Filipino, 48 years old

AGAP Manager Mr. Rivera is appointed as Manager of Action Group 
Against Poverty since 2018.  He finished BS in Fine Arts at 
Far Eastern University and Cookery NCII at MDB Culinary 
School.  He attended courses in Microfinance conducted 
by Card MRI in Laguna.  He has relevant experience in 
Corporate Social Responsibility as program director in 
Wings of Change Charities for 10 years. 

Jesse P. Dela Cruz
Filipino, 43 years old

Chief Information 
Officer

Mr. Dela Cruz is appointed as Chief IT since 2018.  He is 
primarily focused and assigned in Bancnet, IT Risk 
Management, Data Protection and Bank Security.  He 
finished BS in Computer Engineering and Master of 
Engineering Major in Computer at Mapua Institute of 
Technology.  He is an experienced lecturer and full time 
professor in related fields for 20 years.  He became College 
Dean in Lyceum of Subic Bay and Computer Engineering 
Chairperson in Columban College.

Fredie E. Ramos
Filipino, 48 years old

We Care Center Head Mr. Ramos is appointed as Head of We Care, the bank’s 
customer service handling OFW concerns and PASB 
customer complaints since 2018.  He finished BS in 
Business Administration at Columban College Inc.  He also 
attended seminars on Customer Service for Banking 
Operations and AML Law.  He has 11 years experience as a 
manager in a food industry. 
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS

Name Nationality

Shares Subscribed

No. of Shares 
Subscribed

 Amount 
Subscribed

%

Virginia S. Dio Filipino 480,000 Ᵽ48,000,000 40.00%

Veronica S. Dio Filipino 360,000 Ᵽ36,000,000 30.00%

Verona Joy S. Dio Filipino 357,738 Ᵽ35,773,800 29.81%
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 As at December 31

2018 2017

ASSETS

Cash and Other Cash Items (Note 6)  ₱  4,321,079  ₱  3,011,558
Due from BSP (Note 7)  22,161,461  17,187,660
Due from Other Banks (Note 7)  238,374,215  174,308,642
Investment in Non-Marketable Securities (Note 8)  5,169,458  7,354,912
Short-term Investment (Note 9)  40,176,631  -  
Loans & Receivable, Net (Note 10) 51,666,676 22,067,105
Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Net (Note 11 )  23,285,860  16,133,370
Investment Properties (Note 12)  2,469,373  2,916,921
Other Assets (Note 13)  5,796,446  5,232,741
TOTAL ASSETS ₱  393,421,199 ₱  248,212,909

LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposit Liabilities (Note 14) ₱ 285,116,871 ₱ 162,961,069
Accrued Interest, Taxes and Other Expenses Payable (Note 15)  192,316  -  
Other Liabilities (Note 16)  26,541,266  11,134,635
Income Tax Payable(Note 24) 208,377   128,265
TOTAL LIABILITIES ₱ 312,058,830 ₱ 174,223,969

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share Capital (Note 17)

Common Stock  68,117,500  68,117,500
Retained Earnings  13,244,869  5,871,441
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  81,362,369  73,988,941
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY ACCOUNTS  ₱ 393,421,199   ₱ 248,212,910
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE  ₱ 119.44  ₱ 108.62

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31

2018 2017

INTEREST INCOME

Loans & Receivables (Note 10)  ₱  11,448,505  ₱  3,109,772
Due from Other Banks (Note 7)  3,952,216  166,353
Financial Asset at Amortized Cost (Note 8)  155,394  196,315
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME  15,556,114  3,472,440

INTEREST EXPENSE

Savings Deposits (Note 14)  2,176,664  847,999
Time Deposits (Note 14)  20,842  19,683
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE  2,197,506  867,682

NET INTEREST INCOME  13,358,608  2,604,758

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES  2,588,532  36,805

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION  10,770,077  2,567,953

OTHER INCOME (Note 18)  19,656,603  10,718,061

TOTAL INCOME BEFORE OPERATING EXPENSES  30,426,680  13,286,014

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE

Compensation & Fringe Benefits (Note 19)  6,266,848  3,911,846
Other  Operating Expenses (Note 21)  11,222,472  6,493,675
Depreciation & Amortization (Note 22)  3,490,941  2,565,988
Taxes & Licenses (Note 26)  37,563  15,115
Impairment Loss  137,206  244,477

 21,155,030  13,231,101

NET INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX  9,271,649  54,913

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) (Note 24) 1,001,970  251,900

NET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAX  ₱ 8,269,679  ₱ (196,987)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ₱    12.14 ₱       (0.29)
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 76



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Share Capital
(Note 16)

 Retained Earnings 
(Deficit)- Free

 Total

Balance at January 1, 2018  ₱  68,117,500  ₱ 5,871,441  ₱  73,988,941
Total comprehensive income for the year -  8,269,679  8,269,679
Provision and adjustment -  (896,250)  (896,250)
Balance at December 31, 2018  ₱  68,117,500  ₱ 13,244,869  ₱  81,362,369

Balance at January 1, 2017  ₱  68,117,500  ₱ (5,246,713)  ₱  62,870,787
Total comprehensive income for the year -  (196,987)  (196,987)
Provision and adjustment -  11,315,141  11,315,141
Balance at December 31, 2017  ₱  68,117,500  ₱   5,871,441  ₱  73,988,941
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 For The Years Ended December 31

2018 2017

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income  ₱ 8,269,679  ₱   (196,987)

Provisions and Adjustments  (896,250)  (688,089)

Provision for Credit Losses on Loans and Receivables  2,588,532  36,804

Depreciation and amortization (Note 21 & 10)  3,490,941  2,565,988

Bad debts -  125,955

Adjustment to reconcile Net Income to

Net cash  provided by operating activities:

Decrease/(Increase) in:

   Financial Asset at Amortized Cost (Note 8)  2,185,454  3,298,060

Loans & Receivables (Note 10)  (32,188,103)  (6,183,853)

Investment Properties(Note 11)  447,548  (108,021)

Other Assets (Note 12)  (563,705)  (3,144,237)

Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities

Deposit liabilities (Note 13)  122,155,802  7,782,439

Accrued Interest, taxes and other expenses(Note 14)  192,316  (998,029)

Other liabilities (Note 15)  15,406,631  8,190,449

Income Tax Payable(Note 23)  80,122  (229,228)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES  121,168,956  10,451,251

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Short-term Investments (Note 9)  (40,176,631)

Cash Payments on Premises, Furniture, & Equipment (Note 10)  (10,643,432)  (10,598,933)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED IN) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (50,820,063)  (10,598,933)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Additional capital  -   10,000,000

NET CASH  PROVIDED (USED IN) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES  -   10,000,000

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS  70,348,894  9,852,318

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING  194,507,861  184,655,543

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING(Note 6 & 7)  ₱   264,856,754  ₱   194,507,861

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
 
 
1.     GENERAL INFORMATION
 
Pacific Ace Savings Bank Inc. (“the Bank”) was duly registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) on November 6, 1998 under SEC Registration No. A199816569. The Bank was granted authority by the 
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) to engage in and carry on the general business of a savings/ thrift and 
mortgaging e bank, to exercise all the rights, attributes, powers and privileges together with the assumption 
of all duties and obligations of a savings/ thrift mortgage bank as provided for the Thrift Banking Act of 1995 
(Republic Act No. 7906) and other related laws, and to transact and do all matters and things incidental 
thereto or which may at any time hereafter be usual in connection with the business of a savings or thrift 
bank.
 
On June 29, 2009, the Bank amended its Articles of Incorporation to change its corporate name from 
Imperial Bank (A Savings Bank) Inc. to Pacific Ace Savings Bank Inc. and to change location of principal office 
from San Pedro, Laguna to Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Olongapo City.
 
The Bank is registered with Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority (SBMA) as a Subic Bay Freeport (SBF) 
enterprise under Republic Act 7227, otherwise known as the bases conversion and development act of 1992. 
As a SBF registered enterprise the Bank is subject to 5% preferential tax rate on gross entitled to the 
privileges and benefits provided for under RA 7227 and its implementing rules and regulations such as not 
limited to tax and duty free importation of raw materials, capital equipment and household and personal 
items for use and only within SBF Zone. The Bank is 99.98% owned by Filipino Citizens.
 
On October 9, 2017, SBMA issued Certificate of Registration and Tax Exemption with No. 2001-2044, granting 
the Bank the rights, privileges, and benefits of a SBF. The Certificate is automatically renewed under Section 
23 of the Implementing Rules from the set forth above until October 8, 2018.
 
The Bank’s Board of Directors is composed of three (3) member and (2) two independent directors.
 
The registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Retail 1, Times Square, Cinema 
Complex, Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Olongapo City.
 
The financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2018 were authorized for issue by its 
Board of Directors on March 28, 2019.
 
 
2.     SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
separately below or explained in the respective notes to these financial statements. These policies have been 
consistently applied to the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI) and derivate financial instruments, if any, that have been measured at fair value. The 
financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (“₱”) and all values are rounded to the nearest peso 
except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Statement of Compliance
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS) and relative laws, regulations and industry practices applicable to rural banks. The term 
PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting

 Standards (PAS), Interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC) and Standing 
Interpretations Committee (SIC)/International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which 
have been approved and adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). The preparation of 
financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are 
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
 
2.3 Changes in Accounting Policy
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except that the 
Bank has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1, 2017. Adoption of these 
pronouncements did not have any significant impact on the Bank’s financial position or performance, unless 
otherwise stated.
New Standards and Interpretations
·                PFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments
·                PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
·                Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transaction and Advance Consideration
 
Amendments to Standards
·                Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfer of Investment Property
·                Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with PFRS 4
 
Final Version of PFRS 9 Adoptation
The Bank adopted the final version of PFRS 9 effective January 1, 2018. As a result, the Bank changed to the 
following accounting policies beginning 2018.
 
a.  Classification and Measurement
The version adopted by the Bank specified how an entity should classify and measure its financial assets. It 
requires all financial assets to be classified in their entirety on the basis of the entity’s business model for 
managing the financial assets. Financial Assets are measured either at amortized cost or fair value
 
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
 
Financial Assets are measure at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
 
a. the asset is held within the Bank’s business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows

b. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Liability at Amortized Cost
 
Financial Liability are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for:
a. financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair value ; and
b. financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when 
the continuing involvement approach applies.
 
New Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Bank’s financial statements are listed 
below. The Bank intends to adopt these standards when they become applicable. Except as otherwise 
indicated, the Bank does not expect the adaptation of these new and amended standards and 
interpretations to have significant impact on the financial statements:
 
PFRS 16, Leases, replaces the current guidance in PAS 17. The standard now requires lessees to recognize a 
lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a right- of- use for virtually all lease contracts. Under PFRS 
16, a contract is a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange of consideration. This standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted, but only in conjunction with PFRS 15, “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers’.
 
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS)
 
 
2.4 Recognition of Financial Asset
Financial assets in the scope of PAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. 
When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in case of investments, 
directly attributable transaction costs.
 
The Bank determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, when allowed and 
appropriate, reevaluates this designation at each balance sheet date.  It recognizes  a  financial  asset  or  a  
financial  liability  in the balance sheet  when  it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.  All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the 
date when the Bank commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases  or  sales  are purchases  or  sales 
of  financial assets that require delivery  of  assets  within  the  period generally established by regulations or 
conventions in the market place.

2.4a Cash & Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, amounts 
due from BSP and other banks that are convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of 
three months or less from dates of placements and that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 
Due from BSP includes the statutory reserves required by the BSP which the Bank considers as cash 
equivalents as withdrawals can be made to meet the Bank’s cash requirements as allowed by the BSP. The 
components of cash and cash equivalents are shown in the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash 
equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4b Held to Maturity Investments (HTM)
HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities for which the Bank’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After 
initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included 
in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income 
when the HTM investments are derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The 
losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the statement of income under 
‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’.
 
If the Bank sells more than an insignificant amount of HTM investments prior to maturity (other than in 
specific circumstances) the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as AFS investments. 
Furthermore, the Bank would be precluded from using the HTM investment category for the following two 
years. Under current regulations, investment in bonds and other debt instruments shall not exceed 50% of 
the adjusted net-worth plus 40% of the total deposit liabilities.
 
2.4c Unquoted Debt Securities Classified as Loans (UDSCL)
This refers to debt securities, with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
Unquoted Debt Securities Classified as Loans shall be measured upon initial recognition at their fair value 
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the securities. After initial recognition, 
the Bank shall measure these securities at their amortized cost using the effective interest method. A gain or 
loss arising from the change in the value of the Unquoted Debt Securities Classified as Loans shall be 
recognized in the Statement of Income & Expenses when the security is derecognized or impaired   through 
amortization process.
 
2.4d Investment in Non-Marketable Securities (INMES)
Investment in Non-Marketable Equity Securities includes equity instruments that do not have a quoted 
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measure. INMES shall be measured 
upon initial recognition at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the securities. After initial recognition, the Bank shall measure INMES at cost.
 
A gain or loss arising from the change in fair value of the INMES shall be recognized in the Statement of 
Income & Expenses when the security is derecognized or impaired.
 
2.4e Loans & Receivables
This accounting policy relates to the statement of financial position captions ‘Loans and receivables’, ‘Due 
from BSP’, ‘Due from other banks’ and refundable rental deposits under ‘Other assets’. These are 
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted 
in an active market, other than:
 
·   those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the Bank upon 

initial recognition designates as at FVPL;
·   those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as AFS investments; or
·   Those for which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because 

of credit deterioration.
·   After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using 

the effective interest method, less any allowance for credit losses. Amortized cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate (EIR). The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the statement of income. 
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’ in the 
statement of income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4f Other Investments & Other Financial Assets
Financial Assets covered by PAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans or receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. 
When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of 
investments, at fair value through profit or loss plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Bank 
determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, when allowed and 
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.
 
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date when the 
Bank commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of 
assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
 
2.5 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities include deposit liabilities, bills payable and other accrued expenses and are recognized 
when the Bank becomes party to the contractual agreement of the instrument. Financial liabilities are 
initially recognized at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less settlement 
payments. The following compose the financial liabilities of the Bank:
 
2.5a Deposit Liabilities
The deposit liability account includes demand deposits, savings deposits and term deposits. Demand 
deposits refer to those which are subject to withdrawal by check which are otherwise known as current or 
checking accounts. Savings deposits may be interest bearing or non-interest bearing and are withdraw-able 
upon presentation of properly accomplished withdrawal slip and passbook. Term deposits refer to 
interest-bearing deposits with specific maturity dates and evidenced by passbook or certificate issued by the 
Bank.
 
2.5b Bills Payable
The bills payable account refers to obligations availed by the Bank from other financial institutions thru 
rediscounting which requires the issuance of borrowers' promissory notes and their corresponding 
collaterals.
2.5c Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
These refer to obligations already incurred by the Bank which are not yet paid as of the balance sheet date. 
These are normally measured at actual costs.

2.6 Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
 
2.6a Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets) is 
derecognized when:
 
a.     the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
b.     the Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay 

them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or
c.     the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained the risks and 
rewards of the asset but has transferred control over the asset.
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Where the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks, rewards and 
control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank 
could be required to repay.    
 
2.6b Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has 
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of income.
 
2.7 Impairment of Financial Assets
Impairment is determined as follows:
a.)   For assets carried at amortized cost such as receivables from customers, impairment is based on 

estimated cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
b.)   For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value.
c.)    For assets carried at cost, impairment is the present value of future cash flows discounted at the current 

market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
d.)   For available for sale equity investments, reversal of impairment loss is recorded as increase in cumulative 

change in fair value through equity.
In addition, a provision is made to cover impairment for specific groups of assets where there is measurable 
decrease in estimated future cash flows.
 
2.8 Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For financial asset carried at amortized cost, the Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists individually for significant financial assets or collectively for insignificant financial assets.
 
It there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original 
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of 
the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss 
shall be recognized in the Statement of Income & Expenses. Interest income continues to be recognized 
within a period specified in the instrument or by regulation using the original effective interest rate of the 
asset.  The financial assets, together with the associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collaterals have been realized.
 
If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset  
whether significant or not, the asset so included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk 
characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for  impairment. Those 
characteristics are relevant to the estimate of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative 
of the debtors' ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being 
evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or 
continues to be recognized, are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. 84
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of impairment. Loss is recognized in the Income 
Statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the 
reversal date.
 
The present value of the future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. 
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current 
effective interest rate adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from 
foreclosure or other mode of acquisition reduced by costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.
 
For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are group on the basis of such credit 
risk characteristics as industry, collateral type and past due status.
 
2.9 Financial Assets Carried at Cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted instrument that is 
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is 
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such  unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
 
2.10 Restructured Loans
Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may 
involve extending the payment period and the arrangement of new loan terms and conditions. Once the 
terms renegotiated have been finalized, the loan is classified as restructured loan. Management continuously 
reviews restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are met and the future payments are likely to occur. The 
loan is continuously subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment calculated using the loan's 
original effective interest rate. The difference between the recorded value of the original loan and the present 
value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate, is recognized in 
"Provision for Impairment and Credit Losses" in the Statement of Income & Expenses.
 
2.11 Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet if, and 
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there's an intention 
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the 
case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross amount in 
the balance sheet.
 
2.12 Loans & Discounts
Receivables from customers are stated at the outstanding balance reduced by an allowance for probable 
loan losses.

Interest  income  on  non-discounted term loan  is  accrued  monthly  as  earned,  except  in  the case of 
non-accruing  loans.
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Unearned discounts are recognized as income over the period for which such discount has been collected 
using the effective interest method. In accordance with the existing BSP regulations no interest income is 
accrued on accounts classified as past due.
Under existing  BSP  regulations,  non-accruing  loans  are  those that have been defined as being past  due  
and  items  in  litigations, or  those for which, in the opinion of management, collection of interest or principal  
is doubtful.  Interest income on these loans is recognized only to the extent of amount collected.  Loans are 
not classified as accruing until interest and/or principal due are collected and the loans are brought to 
current or are restructured in accordance with existing BSP regulations and future payments appear assured. 
Collaterals of restructured loans exceeding P1Million shall be revalued by an independent appraiser 
acceptable to BSP.

Sec. X306 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) states that past due accounts of a bank shall, as a 
general rule, refer to all accounts in its loan portfolio, all receivable components of trading account securities 
and other receivables, which are not paid at maturity. BSP Circular No. 248 classified the past due loans as 
follows:

"For  loans  or  receivable  which  are  payable  in  installment, the total outstanding balance thereof shall  be  
considered  past  due  when  installment  due is not paid in accordance with the following schedule:

Installment refers to principal and/or interest amortizations that are due on several dates as indicated in the 
loan documents.  The allowance for loan losses is the estimated amount of losses in the Bank’s portfolio, 
based on evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior loan loss experience. "

Any amount set aside with respect to losses on loans and advances in addition to those losses that have been 
specifically identified or potential losses are indicatively present in the portfolio of loans and advances, are 
accounted for as appropriations from retained earnings.  Any credits resulting from the reduction of such 
amounts result in an increase in retained earnings and are not included in the determination of net profit or 
loss for the period.

The allowance is increased by provisions charged to expense and reduced by reasonable   write-offs and 
reversals as determined by the Bank.

            Mode of Payment              Minimum No. of installment in Arrears
________________________________________________________

                                Monthly                    -                               3
                                Quarterly                  -                               1
                                Semi-Annually           -                               1
                                Annually                   -                               1
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2.13 Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment’s
The initial cost of premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment except land, comprises its purchase price 
including import duties, borrowing costs (during the construction period), and any directly attributable costs 
in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.  Cost also includes the cost of 
replacing the part of such asset when the recognition criteria are met and the estimated cost of dismantling 
and removing the asset and restoring the site.

Expenditures incurred after the premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment have been put into operation, 
such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to operations in the period the costs are incurred.  In 
situations where it can be clearly determined that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future 
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset beyond its originally assessed standard 
of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs.

When major improvement is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the premises, 
furniture, fixtures, and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

For financial reporting purposes, depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The useful lives and depreciation/amortization method are being reviewed by the Bank periodically to ensure 
that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of 
economic benefits from the items of premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment.  The residual value, if any, 
is also reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Fully depreciated assets are retained  in  the accounts at P1.00 net value until they are no longer  in  use  and  
no  further  charge  for  depreciation  is made with respect to those assets.  When assets  are  retired  or  
otherwise disposed of, the cost and related  accumulated depreciation are removed  from the account and 
any resulting gain or loss are reflected in the income for the period. Any disposal or deletion of property, plant 
and equipment from the Bank's book of accounts should be approved by the management.

Leasehold improvements and intangibles are amortized over the term of the lease or life of the 
improvements or intangibles, whichever is shorter.

2.14 Impairment of Premises, Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
An assessment is made at the balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired, or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognized for an 
asset in prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If any such indication exists and when the 
carrying value of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its 
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in use.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value of money and the risk specific to 
the asset.  Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  For impairment loss on specific assets or investments, the 
recoverable amount represents the net selling price.
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An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  An 
impairment loss is charged against operations in the year in which it arises.  A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in estimate used to determine the recoverable 
amount of an asset, however, not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been 
determined (net of any accumulated depreciation and amortization for premises, furniture, fixtures, and 
equipment) had no impairment loss was recognized for the asset in prior years.  A reversal for impairment 
loss is credited to current operations.

2.15 Sales Contract Receivable
Sales Contract Receivable (SCR) shall be recorded based on the present value of the installments receivables 
discounted at the imputed rate of interest.  Discount shall be accrued over the life of the SCR by crediting 
interest income using the effective interest method.  Any difference between the present  value  of  the  SCR 
and the derecognized assets shall be recognized in profit or loss at the date of  sale  in  accordance  with  the  
provisions  of PAS 18 Revenue. Provided, that SCR shall be subject to impairment provisions of PAS 39.

SCRs that meet all the requirements or conditions enumerated below are considered performing assets:
1. That there has been a down payment of at least twenty percent (20%) of the agreed selling price or in 
the absence thereof, the installment payments on the principal had already amounted to at least twenty 
percent (20%) of the agreed selling price;
2. That payment of the principal must be in equal installments or in diminishing amounts and with 
maximum intervals of one (1) year;
3. That any grace period in the payment of principal shall not be more than two (2) years and;
4. That there is no installment payment in arrears either on principal or interest.

2.16 Investment Properties
Investment Properties  in settlement of loans through foreclosure or dacion in payment shall be booked 
initially at the carrying  amount of the loan (i.e., outstanding loan balance adjusted for any unamortized 
premium or discounts less  allowance for probable losses computed  based  on  PAS  39 provisioning 
requirements) plus booked accrued interest  receivable less allowance for probable losses plus transaction 
costs  incurred   upon acquisition  (such  as  non-refundable  capital  gains  tax  and documentary  stamp  tax  
paid  in  connection  with the foreclosure/purchase of the acquired real estate property).  Provided, that 
where the booked amount of Investment Properties exceeds the appraised value of the acquired property, an 
allowance for probable losses equivalent to the excess of the amount booked over the appraised value shall 
be set up.

An in-house appraisal of all Investment Properties shall be made at least every other year; provided that 
immediate reappraisal shall be conducted on Investment Properties which materially decline in value.

The carrying amount of Investment Properties shall be allocated to land, building, other non-financial assets 
and financial assets (e.g., receivables from third party or equity interest in an entity) based on their fair values, 
which allocated carrying amounts shall become their initial costs.  Improvements on land shall be 
depreciated using the straight line method.

Before foreclosing or acquiring any property in settlement of loans, it must be properly appraised to 
determine its true economic value.  If the amount of Investment Properties to be booked exceeds P5 million, 
the appraisal must be conducted by an independent appraiser acceptable to the BSP.
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Initially, investment properties are measured at cost including certain transaction costs. Investment 
properties acquired through a nonmonetary asset exchange is measured initially at fair value unless (a) the 
exchange lacks commercial substance or (b) the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given 
up is reliably measured. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the investment 
properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from their disposal. Any 
gain or loss on the derecognition shall be recorded as gain on sale of investment properties in the Statement 
of Income in the year of disposal.

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operation, such as repairs and 
maintenance costs, are normally charged to income in the period when the costs are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated in straight-line basis using the following useful lives from the time of acquisition 
for the investment properties.

However, under BSP circular 520, Investment Properties shall still be classified as Real and Other Properties 
Acquired (INVESTMENT PROPERTIES) but only accounted for as Investment Properties under PAS 40.

2.17 Other Assets
Other assets account represents residual accounts which were not classified as a separate line item in the 
manual of accounts as provided in Circular 512 as amended by Circular 520 issued by the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas.

2.18 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Bank assesses at each reporting date if there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank makes an estimate of 
the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs 
to sell. When the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments and 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses on continuing operations are 
recognized in the Income Statement in the expense categories.

The assessment is made at each reporting date. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation that 
would have been determined, had no impairment loss have been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life.
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2.19 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources 
and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.  A 
present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from 
past events, for example, legal disputes or onerous contracts.

Provisions are measured at the estimated  expenditure required to settle  the  present  obligation, based  on  
the  most  reliable  evidence available on balance sheet date,  including the risks and uncertainties associated 
with the present obligation.  Any reimbursement expected to be received in the course of settlement of the 
present obligation is recognized,   if virtually certain, as a separate asset at an amount not exceeding the 
balance of the related provision.  Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an 
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.  In 
addition, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values, where time value of money is material.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligation is 
considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided cannot be measured reliably, no liability is 
recognized in the financial statements. Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the 
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence not recognized in the financial assets.

2.20 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when it  is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will  
flow  to  the  Bank  and  the  amount  of  the revenue can be measured reliably. The following specific 
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

A. Interest Income
Interest  income  on  receivables  from  customers  is  recognized  based  on the accrual method of 
accounting,  except in  the  case of  non-accruing receivables.  Unearned discount is recognized as income 
over the term of the receivable or discount using the effective interest method.

B. Loan Fees and Service Charges
Loan commitment fees are collected from each credit line granted to each borrower and recognized as 
earned over the period for which it was collected. Service charges and other penalties are recognized only 
upon collection or accrued where there is reasonable degree of certainty as to its collection.

C. Other and Miscellaneous Income

2.21 Income Taxes

Current tax
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided, using the statement of financial position liability method, on all temporary 
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences with exceptions. Deferred tax 
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits from 
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net 
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused excess MCIT over RCIT and 
unused NOLCO can be utilized.

Deferred tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting income nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes relates to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority.

Current income tax and deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in 
OCI, and not in profit or loss.

2.22 Employee Benefits
(a) Short term benefits
The Company provides short term benefits to its employees in the form of salaries and wages, 13th month 
pay, contributions to SSS/PHIC/HDMF and other short term employee benefits and are presented  as part of 
the operating expenses as compensation and fringe benefits -employees.

Employees short- term benefits
The bank follows the monthly contributions to government agencies for its employees as provided by the law 
such as SSS, Pag-Ibig and Philhealth membership contributions. Other short-term benefits of the employees 
include various leave pay benefits, 13th month pay, performance bonuses, and christmas bonus of its 
employees and credited the same to a reserve account earmarked for that purposes.

(b) Retirement Benefits
Republic Act (RA) No. 7641 (New Retirement Law) which took effect on January 7, 1993 requires the company 
to provide minimum retirement benefit to qualified retiring employees. Minimum retirement benefit is 
equivalent to at least one half month salary for every year of service. An employee upon reaching sixty years 
of age and who has served at least five years may retire and be entitled to retirement benefits. The 
compulsory retirement age is sixty five (65) years of age.
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Post-employment Benefits
The bank provides certain amount from current operations for post-employment benefits of its employees 
and credit the same to a certain reserve account earmarked for that purpose. It is not however covered by 
any defined retirement plan.

The defined retirement plan should be funded and held in trust with a reputable trust company to make the 
contributions to this account eligible as tax deduction and at the same time, comply with provisions of the 
law.

2.23 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension was 

initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; there 

is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change 
in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios ‘a’, ‘c’ or ‘d’ above, and at the date of renewal or 
extension period for scenario ‘b’.

Bank as lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified 
as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.24 Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the Bank issues more 
than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and the number of shares 
issued. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as 
deduction from proceeds, net of tax. The subscribed capital stock is reported in equity less the related 
subscription receivable not currently collectible. Capital stock consists of common and preferred. Preferred 
stocks are (a) cumulative, (b) non-voting, and (c) non-redeemable.

Subscribed common stock is recognized at subscribed amount net of subscription receivable.
Subscriptions receivable pertains to uncollected portion of subscribed stocks. The Bank accounted for the 
subscription receivable as a contra equity account.

Retained earnings represents the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend contributions, 
prior period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Cash dividends are recognized as liability and deducted from the equity when approved by the Board of 
Directors (BOD) while stock dividends are deducted from equity when approved by BOD and stockholders. 
Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as subsequent events. Stock 
issuance costs are accounted for as deduction from equity. 92
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Deposit for Future Stock Subscription
Deposit for future stock subscription (DFS) represents payments made on subscription of shares which 
cannot be directly credited to ‘Preferred stock’ or ‘Common stock’ pending registration with the SEC of the 
amendment to the Articles of Incorporation increasing capital stock. In accordance with SEC Financial 
Reporting Bulletin No. 006 issued in 2012, the Bank does consider a deposit for future subscription as an 
equity instrument unless all of the following elements are present.

a. The unissued authorized capital stock of the Bank is insufficient to cover the amount of shares 
classified as deposits for future shares subscriptions;

b. the entity’s BOD and shareholders have approved an increase in capital stock to cover the shares 
corresponding to the amount of the deposit; and

c. an application for the approval of the increase in capital stock has been presented for filing or filed 
with the SEC and BSP.

2.25a Earnings per Share
Earnings  per  share  (EPS)  is  computed  by  dividing  net income  by the weighted    average   number   of  
ordinary shares  outstanding   during  the  year  with   retroactive adjustments applicable, if any, to 
preference shares.

2.25b Book Value per Share
The book value per common share is derived from the total stockholders' equity net of preferred shares and 
dividends (for cumulative shares) divided by the total number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2.26 Events after Reporting Date
Post-year-end events up to the date of approval of the BOD of the financial statements that provide 
additional information about the Bank’s position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the 
financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed in the notes 
when material to the financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the management to 
make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses 
and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities, if any. Future events may occur which will 
cause the judgments used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are 
reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.
Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements:

a. Classification of financial instruments
The Company exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial 
recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an 
equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its 
classification in the statements of financial position.
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In addition, the Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted 
or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an active 
market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether those 
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

B. Classification of leases
Management exercises judgment in determining whether substantially all the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the leased assets are transferred to the Company. Lease contracts which transfer to the 
Company substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased items, are capitalized. 
Otherwise, they are considered as operating leases.

3.2 Estimates

3.2a Allowance for Probable Losses
The allowance for probable loan losses, which includes both specific and general loan loss reserve represents 
management's estimate of probable losses inherent in the portfolio, after considering the prevailing and 
anticipated economic conditions, prior loss experience, estimated recoverable value based on fair market 
values of underlying collaterals and prospect of support from guarantors, subsequent collections and 
evaluations made by the BSP.  The BSP observes certain criteria and guidelines in establishing specific loan 
loss reserves for classified loans and other risk assets as provided under Sec. x178.17, Sec. x 178.18 and 
Appendix 18 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks.

Individually assessed loans and other credit accommodations (which include other credits such as accounts 
receivables, sales contract receivables, accrued interest receivables and advances):

Loans and other credit accommodation with unpaid principal and/or interest is being classified and provided 
with allowance for credit losses (ACL) based on the number of days missed payments as follows:

For unsecured loans and credit accommodations:

Number of days Unpaid/with missed payments  Classification ACL

31 - 90 days Substandard 10%

91 - 120 days Substandard 25%

121 - 18- days Doubtful 50%

180 days and over   Loss 100%
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For secured loans and other credit accommodations:

Provided that where the quality of physical collateral or financial guarantees securing the loans and 
advances are determined to be insufficient, weak or without recoverable values, such loans and advances is 
treated as if unsecured.

Loans and other credit accommodations that exhibit the characteristics for classified account described 
under Subsection x178.17 of the MORB is being provided with allowance for credit losses as follows:

Unsecured loans and other credit accommodations classified as "substandard" in the last two (2) internal 
credit reviews which have been continuously renewed/extended without reduction in principal and is not in 
process of collection, is downgraded to "doubtful" classification and provided with 50% allowance for credit 
losses.

Loans and other credit accommodations under litigation which have been classified as "pass" prior to 
litigation process is classified as 'substandard" and provided with 25% ACL.

Loans and other credit accommodations that were previously classified as "pass" but were subsequently 
restructured shall have a minimum classification of "especially mentioned" and provided with a 5% ACL, 
except for loans which are considered non-risk under existing laws, rules and regulations.

Number of days Unpaid/with missed payments  Classification ACL

31 - 180 days Substandard 10%

181 - 365 days Substandard 25%

Over 1 year -5 years Doubtful 50%

Over 5 years   Loss 100%

Classified Loans  Allowance

Loans Especially Mentioned 5% of the borrower's outstanding loan

Sub-standard Secured 10% of the borrower's outstanding loan

Sub-standard Unsecured 25% of the borrower's outstanding loan

Doubtful 50% of the borrower's outstanding loan

Loss  100% of the borrower's outstanding loan
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Classified loans and other credit accommodations that were subsequently restructured shall retain their 
classification and provisioning until the borrower has sufficiently exhibited that the loan will be repaid.

Collectively Assessed Loans and Other Credit Accommodations which includes microfinance loans, micro 
enterprises and small business loans and consumer loans such as salary loans, credit card receivables, auto 
loans, housing loans and other consumption loans, and other types of loan which fall below the Bank's 
materiality threshold for individual assessment:

Current "pass" loans and other credit accommodations is provided with ACL based on the number of days of 
missed payments as follows:

For unsecured loans and other credit accommodations:

For secured loans and other credit accommodations:

Provided, that where the quality of physical collaterals or financial guarantees securing the loans and 
advances are determined to be insufficient, weak or without recoverable values, such loans and advances is 
treated as if these are unsecured.  

No. of Days Unpaid/with missed payments Classification ACL

1 - 30 days Especially Mentioned 2%

31 - 60 days/1st restructuring Substandard 25%

61 - 90 days Doubtful 50%

over 90 days/2nd restructuring Loss 100%

No. of Days Unpaid/With Missed 
Payments

Classification Allowance for Credit Losses (ACL)

Other types of 
collateral

Secured by real 
estate

31 - 90 days Substandard 10% 10%

91 - 120 days Substandard 25% 15%

121 - 360 days Doubtful 50% 25%

361 days - 5 years Loss 100% 50%

Over 5 years Loss 100% 100%
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Unclassified loans and receivables-General loan loss provision

Outstanding loans that were already subjected to specific provisioning were no longer included in the 
general loan loss provisioning as shown above.

Other Risk Assets:
Other risk assets such as accounts receivable are also given allowance after considering the nature of the 
transaction and the degree of collectibles of the accounts.
Provisions for losses (expense account) on the above cited risk assets are determined by the required 
allowance at the end of the year less the beginning allowance for a particular year adjusted by write-off and 
recovery, if any.

3.2b Useful lives of Premises, Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
The estimated useful lives of the Bank’s premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment are based on the period 
over which the assets are expected to be available for use, and on the collective assessment of the industry 
practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets.  The estimates are reviewed 
periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, 
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits in the use of the premises, furniture, fixtures, 
and equipment.

3.2c Useful life of Depreciable ROPA
The assumptions and estimates used by the Bank in the useful life of ROPA are made to objectively 
determine the productivity or use of the assets. The BSP however in its Circular 494 provided that 
ROPA-building  and ROPA-Other Non-Financial Assets specifically those that were accounted for as 
Investment Property under  PAS 40 shall be depreciated only for a period of not more than 10 and 3 years 
respectively reckoning from the date of foreclosure. Thus, the lower between the estimate of the bank and 
BSP regulation shall prevail.

3.2d Residual Value of Depreciable Assets
The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that an entity would obtain from the disposal of the 
asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal. The management's estimate on the residual values of 
its assets is based on a conservative approach where residual values assigned to each asset are nil.

3.2e Estimate Used in Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets
Reasonable estimate of the management on the fair value of the financial instrument is the responsibility of 
the management when reference costs and/or values is not quoted in the stock market.
An entity shall asses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial asset is impaired. The threshold and materiality level in PAS 36 and 39 to impair a 
financial asset is provided on a non-quantitative basis thus, the use of judgments in objectively examining 
the financial asset is required. In such case, the top management of the Bank shall be responsible for the 
reasonable judgment pertaining to the valuation of this financial instrument.

For unclassified loans:     

Unclassified restructured loans  5% of the borrower's outstanding loan

Unclassified other than restructured 1% of the borrower's outstanding loan
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3.2f Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Bank assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exist for receivables and due from related 
parties that are individually significant and collectively for receivables that are not individually significant.  
Allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potentially 
uncollectible receivables.

3.2g Contingencies
The adoption of accounting for contingencies in the PAS 37 requires management's prudent judgment and 
expectation on the outcome of particular contingencies. The relevance of this item becomes paramount 
significant when it will materially affect the financial standing of the Bank.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Bank's principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables 
which arise from operations, and long term investments. The Bank's activities are principally related to the 
profitable use of financial instruments. Risks are inherent in these activities but are managed by the Bank 
through a rigorous, comprehensive and continuous process of identification measurement, monitoring and 
mitigation of these risks, partly through the effective use of risk and authority limits, process controls and 
monitoring, and independent controls. The Bank has placed due importance to expanding and 
strengthening its risk management process and considers it as a vital component to the Bank's continuing 
profitability and financial stability. Central to the Bank's risk management process is its adoption of a risk 
management program intended to avoid unnecessary risks, manage and mitigate unavoidable risks and 
maximize returns from taking acceptable risks necessary to sustain its business validity and good financial 
position in the market.

The inherent risks which can arise from the Bank’s financial instruments are credit risk, market risk (i. e. 
interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk) and liquidity risk. The Bank's risk management objective is 
primarily focused on controlling and mitigating these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees on 
policies for managing each of these risks and are summarized as follows:

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the other party's failure to discharge an obligation cited in a 
binding financial instrument. The Bank faces potential credit risks every time it extends funds to borrowers, 
commits funds to counterparties, guarantees the paying performance of its clients, invests funds to issuers 
and enters into either  market-traded or over-the-counter derivatives, through implied or actual contractual 
agreements. The Bank manages the level of credit risks it accepts through comprehensive credit risk policy 
setting assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Bank; setting up exposure limits 
by each counterparty or group of counterparties, geographical and industry segments; guidelines on 
obtaining collateral guarantees; reporting of credit risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority; 
monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence and changing 
environment.
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Additionally, the tables below show the distribution of maximum credit exposure by industry sector of the 
Bank as at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Credit quality per class of financial assets
The description of the financial assets grading used by the Bank is as follows:

● High grade – These are financial assets which have a high probability of collection or are invested or 
deposited with reputable financial institutions. The counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfy its 
obligation and the securities on the receivables are readily enforceable.

● Standard grade –These are financial assets where collections are probable due to the reputation and 
the financial ability of the counterparty to pay but with experience of default.

The tables below show the credit quality per class of financial assets (gross of allowance for credit and 
impairment losses) as at December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018

Industry Loans Receivable Due from BSP and 
Other Banks

HTM Investments Total

Wholesale and retail trade and household 
goods

₱ 14,131,562 ₱               - ₱             - ₱ 14,131,562

Agriculture, hunting and forestry 19,819,514 - - 19,819,514

Education - - - -

Financial Institutions - 238,374,215 40176630.52 278,550,845
Government - 22,161,461 5,169,458 27,330,920

Real estate activities 15,716,683 - - 15,716,683
Other service activities 4,347,402 - - 4,347,402

Total ₱ 54,015,161 ₱ 260,535,676 ₱ 45,346,089 ₱359,896,926

2017

Industry Loans Receivable Due from BSP and 
Other Banks

HTM 
Investments

Total

Wholesale and retail trade and 
household goods

₱  4,539,995 ₱              - ₱           
-

₱     4,539,995

Agriculture, hunting and forestry 754,449 - - 754,449

Education - - - -
Real estate activities 7,217,487 - - 7,217,487
Financial Institutions - 174,308,642  7,354,912 181,663,554
Government - 17,187,660 - 17,187,660
Construction 4,634,849 - - 4,634,849
Other service activities 5854481 - - 5,854,481
Total ₱ 23,001,261 ₱ 191,496,302 ₱ 7,354,912 ₱ 221,852,475
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2018

Financial Assets
Neither Past Due 

nor impaired
Past due but not 

impaired
Past due and 

impaired
Total

Due from BSP ₱   22,161,461 ₱   - ₱              - ₱   22,161,461

Due from other banks 238,374,215 - - 238,374,215

HTM investments 40,176,631 - - 40,176,631

INMES 5,169,458 - - 5,169,458

Loans & Receivables 44,996,097 - 9,019,064 54,015,161

₱ 350,877,862 ₱   - ₱ 9,019,064 ₱ 359,896,926

2017

Financial Assets
Neither Past Due 

nor impaired
Past due but not 

impaired
Past due and 

impaired
Total

Due from BSP ₱   17,187,660 ₱     - ₱             - ₱   17,187,660

Due from other banks 174,308,642 - - 174,308,642

HTM investments - - - -

INMES 7,354,912 - - 7,354,912

Loans & Receivables 20,456,188 - 2,545,073 23,001,261

₱ 219,307,402 ₱     - ₱  2,545,073 ₱ 221,852,475

100



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank’s loans that are past due for more than 90 days are considered 
impaired.

Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans and receivables
The following tables show the total aggregate amount of loans and receivables that are contractually past 
due but not considered as impaired per delinquency bucket as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Carrying amount per class of loans and receivables which terms have been renegotiated.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss that may result from the changes in price of a financial product. The value of a 
financial product may change as a result of changes in interest rates (currency risk) and market prices (price 
risk). Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates, Currency risk on the other hand is the risk that the value of instrument will fluctuate as 
a result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual 
instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Bank structures levels of market risk it accept through a market risk policy such as (a) determining what 
constitutes market risk for the Bank; (b) establishing basis to be used to fairly value financial assets and 
liabilities; (c) asset allocation and portfolio limit structure; (d) diversification benchmarks by type of 
instrument; (e) setting out the exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties; (f) reporting 
of market risk exposures, (g) monitoring compliance with market risk policy and (h) reviewing of market risk 
policy for pertinence and changing environment.

Interest rate risk
The Bank’s receivables earn effective interest rates ranging from 15.00% to 30.00% in 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. The shortest term of loan is one month while the longest term is Ten Years.

The Bank’s savings deposit liabilities include compulsory and voluntary savings that earn from .30% to 1.50% 
per annum in 2018 and 2017. Time deposits have interest rates of 1.50% to 3.50% in 2018 and 1.00% to 3.50% 
2017, respectively.

The Bank’s savings deposit due from other banks interest rates of 0.25% in 2018 and 2017. Demand deposit 
interest rates of 0.25% in 2018 and 2017. In order to manage its net interest margin, the Bank places its excess 
funds in high yield investments and other short-term time deposits with interest rates ranging from 4.125% 
to 6.28% in 2018 and 1.72 to 2.75 in 2017, respectively.

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of 
changes in interest rates. The Bank's cash equivalents are mostly invested in fixed interest rates on its 
duration and therefore exposed to fair value interest rate risk but not to cash flow interest rate risk.

Loan Receivables and interest bearing liabilities are sized as to interest rate and maturity to make a 
reasonable analysis of the degree of risk associated with lending and borrowings

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. In the case of a floating rate debt instrument. Fluctuation results in a change in effective 
interest rate of a financial instrument usually without a corresponding change in its fair value.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from the 
Bank’s inability to meet its obligations when they come due without incurring unacceptable losses or costs.

The BOD is responsible for formulating the Bank’s liquidity risk management policies. Liquidity management 
is among the most important activities conducted within the Bank. The Bank manages its liquidity risk 
through analyzing net funding requirements under alternative scenarios, diversification of funding sources 
and contingency planning. The Bank utilizes a diverse range of sources of funds, though it is through 
deposits made by its overseas OFW account holders that comprise the majority of such funding. Core 
deposits composed mainly of microfinance savings.

Liquidity risk is managed by the Bank through holding sufficient liquid assets and appropriate assessment to 
ensure short-term funding requirements are met and by ensuring the high collection performance at all 
times. Deposits with banks are made on a short-term basis with almost all being available on demand or 
within one month.

The Finance uses liquidity forecast models that estimate the Bank’s cash flow needs based on the Bank’s 
actual contractual obligations and under normal circumstances and extraordinary circumstances.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile based on contractual undiscounted cash flows of the 
Bank’s financial liabilities and related financial assets used for liquidity purposes: 

2018

On Demand Within 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 months Beyond 1 year Total

Financial Assets

Cash and other cash 
items

₱ 4,359,673 ₱                - ₱            - ₱             - ₱                   -
₱ 
4,359,673

Due from BSP 22,161,461 - - - - 22,161,461

Due from other banks 32,956,429 201,341,078 5,019,250 - - 239,316,757

HTM investments - 39,999,859 - - - 39,999,859

Loans and receivable - 2,746,007 1,480,241 15,777,702 31,662,726.02 51,666,676

Accounts receivable - 740,160 29,999 1,714,897  4,432,842.01 6,917,898

Total Financial Assets ₱  59,477,563 ₱ 244,827,104 ₱ 6,529,490 ₱ 17,492,599 ₱  36,095,568 ₱ 364,422,324

Financial Liabilities

Deposit liabilities 284,260,482.9 - 780,495.72 75,892.50 - 285116871

Other liabilities:

Accounts Payable - 521,086.64  237,900.00  269,914.26  302,193.95 1331094.85

Accrued expenses - 190,244 - 2,073 - 192316.15

Total Financial Liabilities ₱   284,260,483 ₱   711,330 ₱ 1,018,396 ₱ 347,879 ₱ 302,194 ₱ 286,640,282

Net ₱  (224,782,920) ₱ 244,115,774 ₱ 5,511,094 ₱ 17,144,720 ₱ 35,793,374 ₱ 77,782,042
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A. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

 2018  2017
A.1 Total Qualifying Capital
Tier 1 Capital
  Paid-Up Capital - Ordinary ₱ 68,117,500 ₱ 68,117,500

  Retained Earnings - Free  13,244,869  5,871,441
  Total Tier 1 Capital ₱ 81,362,369 ₱ 73,988,941

Tier 2 Capital
  General Loan Loss Provision ₱ 664,103 ₱ 216,744

  Total Tier 2 Capital ₱ 664,103 ₱ 216,744

Total Qualifying Capital ₱ 82,026,472 ₱ 74,205,685

A.2 Calculation of Risk-Weighted Assets
A.2.a Credit Risk-Weighted Assets
Less: Non Risk Assets
    0% Weight Risk
        Cash on Hand ₱ 1,512,175 ₱ 2,984,689

        Due from BSP  22,161,461  17,187,660
        Investments  25,345,458  7,354,912
X Risk Percentage 0% 0%
Risk Weighted Amount  -   -  

     20% Weight Risk
        Checks and Other Cash Items ₱    2,808,904 ₱ 36,869

        Due from Other Banks  238,374,215  -  
X Risk Percentage 20% 20%
Risk Weighted Amount ₱  48,236,624 ₱   7,374
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     50% Risk Weight
Loans to individuals for housing purposes ₱ 9,580,200 ₱ 2,328,449

X Risk Percentage 50% 50%
Risk Weighted Amount ₱ 4,790,100 ₱ 1,164,225

       75% Risk Weight
       Qualified micro, small and medium 

enterprise
 35,014,472  12,021,409

X Risk Percentage 75% 75%
Risk Weighted Amount ₱ 26,260,854 ₱ 9,016,057

     100% Risk Weight
Other Assets

Total Assets per Balance Sheet ₱ 
393,421,200

₱ 248,212,909

  General Loan Loss per Balance Sheet  664,103  216,744
  Less: Total Exposures Excluding Other Assets  325,086,966  27,564,130
Sub-total  68,998,337  220,865,523
Deductions from Other Assets
Unsecured Loan- DOSRI  2,328,449
ROPA  2,469,373  2,916,921
Qualified micro, small and medium enterprise  12,021,409
 Non-Performing Loans  7,984,007  723,612
Net Other Assets
X Risk Percentage 100% 100%
Risk Weighted Amount ₱ 58,544,958 ₱ 202,875,132

        150% Weight Risk
           Non-Performing Assets
              Past Due Loans ₱   7,984,007 ₱    723,612

              ROPA  2,469,373  2,916,921
X Risk Percentage 150% 150%
Risk Weighted Amount ₱ 15,680,070 ₱ 5,460,800
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A.2.b Operational Risk-Weighted Assets ₱ 19,465,500 ₱ 20,540,996

Total Risk Weighted Assets ₱ 
172,978,105

₱ 239,064,583

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 47.42% 31.04%

6. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of December 31, 2018, this account consists of the following:

Cash on hand and in vault also includes cash in Automated Teller Machines (ATM).

Cash and other cash items represents check drawn on other banks. 

7. DUE FROM BSP & OTHER BANKS

As of December 31, 2018, this account consists of the following:

Due form other banks generally earns interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Total interest income earned 
amounted to ₱ 3,952,216 and ₱ 166,353 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The balance of Due from BSP account serves as the Bank's reserve for its deposit liabilities. Under the Manual 
of Regulations for Banks, a Bank is required to maintain its reserve requirements for its deposit liabilities in 
the form of deposits with the BSP.  Section 254.1 of MORB further provides that such deposit account with 
the BSP is not considered as a regular current account.  Drawings against such deposits shall be limited to: 
(a) settlement of obligations with the BSP; and, (b) withdrawals to meet cash requirements.

The Due from Other Banks account represents deposits with other local banks which are being used for its 
daily operations. Breakdown of this account follows:

2018 2017

Cash on Hand and in Vault  ₱   1,512,175  ₱  2,974,689

Cash and Other Cash Items  2,808,904  36,869

Total  ₱   4,321,079  ₱  3,011,558

2018 2017

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas  ₱ 22,161,461  ₱ 17,187,660

Due from Other Banks  238,374,215  174,308,642

Total  ₱   260,535,676  ₱ 191,496,302
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Name of Banks 2018  % 2017  %
Banco De Oro  ₱ 55,255,311 21%  ₱   82,599,881 47%
China Banking Corporation  70,495,649 30%  30,010,084 17%
United Coconut Planters Bank  40,453 0%  20,399,855 12%
Union Bank of the Philippines  116,712 0%  20,050,000 12%
Sterling Bank  100,317,658 39%  20,005,001 11%
Land Bank of the Philippines  2,138,427 1%  1,218,819 1%
Philippine National Bank  10,010,004 4%  25,002 0%
Total  ₱   238,374,215 95%  ₱ 174,308,642 100%

Under Sec.x303g of the Manual of Regulations for Banks, loans and other credit accommodations as well as 
deposits and usual guarantees by a bank to any other bank whether locally or abroad shall be subject to the 
Single Borrower's Limit of 25% of the Net worth as herein prescribed or ₱ 100 Million whichever is higher. 
Provided that the lending bank shall exercise proper due diligence in selecting a depository bank and shall 
formulate appropriate policies to address the corresponding risks involved in the transactions.

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank's SBL was registered at ₱ 20,471,283 and as per BSP Manual of Regulations, 
bank are exempted on the ceiling of single borrower's limit (SBL) on deposit/investment placements to 
government banks, however excess of SBL on private banks are being considered if the accounts are used for 
clearing operation.

As of December 31, 2018 Sterling Bank exceeds the prescribed limit or ₱ 100.0 million under Circular No. 734 
Series of 2011 which has an amount deposit of ₱ 100,317,658 or a rate of 39% as compared to last year's rate of 
11%. 

8.  FINANCIAL ASSET AT AMORTIZED COST

This account is consists of:

The above LPB Bond represents long term placements in agrarian reform - 10 year bond as additional 
compliance under BSP MORB X341.3. Interest rate is 1.21% per annum.

Interest income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to ₱ 155,394 and 
₱ 196,315, respectively.

2018 2017

Agrarian Reform Bonds - Land Bank of the Philippines  ₱ 4,931,291  ₱ 6,992,185

Accumulated Bond Discount  238,167  362,727

Total  ₱ 5,169,458  ₱ 7,354,912
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9. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT

This account is consists of:

10. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

The loan receivables are stated at outstanding balances, net of estimated allowance for credit losses and 
unearned income/discounts, broken down as follows:

The total Allowance for Credit Losses of ₱ 2,348,485 which composed of specific loan loss provisions as stated 
above is in compliance with the BSP Manual of Regulations (Sec. X302.1 Appendix 18) or Circular No. 855.

Movements in the allowance for credit losses related to receivables follow:

Classification of gross outstanding loans:

 2018  2017

Available for sale securities  ₱ 40,176,631  ₱ -

Total  ₱ 40,176,631  ₱ -

2018 % 2017 %

Current Loans  ₱  44,996,097 83%  ₱  20,456,188 89%
Past Due Loans  9,019,064 17%  2,545,073 11%
Total  54,015,161 100%  23,001,261 100%

Less: Allowance for Credit Losses

Specific  1,684,382  717,412

General  664,103  216,744

Total Carrying Amount  51,666,676  22,067,105

Total Loans and Receivables-net  ₱  51,666,676  ₱  22,067,105

2018 2017

Balance at beginning of year  ₱   934,156  ₱ 3,128,612

Provision (IS)  1,414,329  36,804

Accounts Written-Off  -   (2,231,260)

Balance at end year  ₱ 2,348,485  ₱   934,156

As to Maturity:

2018  % 2017  %

Due within one (1) year  ₱ 46,379,004 86%  ₱   8,746,838 38%
Due beyond one (1) year  7,636,157 14%  14,254,423 62%
Total Loan Portfolio  ₱ 54,015,161 100%  ₱ 23,001,261 100%107
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As to Status

2018  % 2017  %  

Current Loans  ₱  44,996,097 83%  ₱   20,456,188 89%  

Past Due Loans  9,019,064 17%  2,545,073 11%  

Total Loan Portfolio  ₱  54,015,161 100%  ₱   23,001,261 100%  

As to Security:

2018  % 2017 %

Real Estate Mortgage  ₱  27,538,019 51%  ₱   13,722,820 60%
Unsecured  26,477,142 49%  9,278,441 40%
Total Loan Portfolio  ₱  54,015,161 100%  ₱   23,001,261 100%

As to Concentration of Credits to Certain Industry/Economic Sector:

2018 % 2017  %

Wholesale  ₱  14,131,562 26%  ₱   4,539,995 20%
Agriculture  19,819,514 37%  754,449 3%
Construction  -  0%  4,634,849 20%
Fishing  -  0%  70,000 0%
Real Estate Activities  15,716,683 29%  7,217,487 31%
Other service activities  4,347,402 8%  5,784,481 25%
Total  ₱  54,015,161 100%  ₱ 23,001,261 100%

said to exist when total loan exposures to a particular industry/economic sector exceeds thirty percent 
(30%) of total loan portfolio. In this case the bank does not have any credit exposure reported as of 
December 31, 2018.

The past due loan ratio as of 2018 is 17% which is higher by 6% as compared to last year's ratio of 11%.

The bank's net income for the year 2018 is increased by 100% as compared to last year's net loss amounted 
to ₱ (196,987). In this case the bank improved its strategy in generating their income.

Interest income for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to ₱ 11,448,505 and 
₱ 3,109,772, respectively.
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11. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Construction in 
Progress

Leasehold 
Improvements

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Other Office 
Equipment

Information 
Technology 
Equipment

Total

December 31, 2018

Cost  ₱ 998,461  ₱  15,658,637  ₱ 1,960,371  ₱ 1,130,917  ₱ 2,537,840  ₱ 38,431,699
 ₱ 

60,717,925
Accumulated Depreciation 
and Amortization

 -   5,221,071  887,994  61,981  934,384  30,326,634  37,432,064

Net carrying amount  ₱ 998,461  ₱  10,437,566  ₱ 1,072,376  ₱ 1,068,936  ₱ 1,603,456  ₱   8,105,065
 ₱ 

23,285,860

December 31, 2017

Cost  ₱ 8,439,525  ₱ 4,683,730  ₱ 804,817  ₱ 47,850  ₱  900,499  ₱ 35,266,039
 ₱ 

50,142,460
Accumulated Depreciation 
and Amortization

 -   4,500,160  750,183  47,849  778,427  27,932,471  34,009,090

Net carrying amount  ₱ 8,439,525
 ₱
183,570

 ₱   54,634  ₱           1  ₱  122,072  ₱  7,333,568
 ₱ 

16,133,370

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment at the 
beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 is shown below:

2018

Construction 
in Progress

Leasehold 
Improvements

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Other Office 
Equipment

Information 
Technology 
Equipment

Total

Cost

Balance at beginning of year  ₱   8,439,525  ₱    4,683,730  ₱    804,817  ₱       47,850  ₱      900,499  ₱  35,266,039  ₱  50,142,460

Additions  (7,441,064)  10,974,907  1,155,554  1,637,341  3,165,660  9,492,397

Balance at end of year
 ₱       

998,461
 ₱  1 5,658,637  ₱ 1,960,371  ₱ 1,130,917  ₱  2,537,840  ₱ 38,431,699  ₱  60,717,925

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Amortization
Balance at beginning of year ₱        -  ₱  4,500,160  ₱      750,183  ₱       47,849  ₱     778,427  ₱ 27,932,471  ₱   34,009,090
Depreciation and amortization -  720,911  137,811  14,132  155,957  2,394,163  3,422,974

Balance at end of year
₱           

-
₱   5,221,071

₱   
887,994

₱   61,981
₱ 

934,384
₱ 30,326,634 ₱   37,432,064

Net Book Value  ₱  998,461  ₱ 10,437,566  ₱   1,072,376  ₱  1,068,936  ₱  1,603,456  ₱   8,105,065  ₱   23,285,860
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2017

Construction 
in Progress

Leasehold 
Improvement

s

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Other Office 
Equipment

Information 
Technology 
Equipment

Total

Cost

Balance at beginning of year  ₱ 8,439,525  ₱ 4,586,730  ₱  775,817  ₱ 47,850  ₱ 900,499  ₱ 33,234,060  ₱ 47,984,481
Additions -  97,000  29,000  -   -   2,033,408  2,159,408
Reclassification - - - - -  (1,429)  (1,429)
Balance at end of year  ₱ 8,439,525  ₱ 4,683,730  ₱  804,817  ₱ 47,850  ₱ 900,499  ₱ 35,266,039  ₱ 50,142,460

Accumulated Depreciation 
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year  ₱ -  ₱ 4,436,171  ₱ 741,574  ₱  47,849  ₱  722,110  ₱  25,500,058  ₱ 31,447,762
Depreciation and 
amortization

-  63,989  10,038  -   56,317  2,432,413  2,562,757

Reclassification - -  (1,429) - - -  (1,429)
Balance at end of year ₱ -  ₱ 4,500,160 ₱ 750,183 ₱  47,849 ₱  778,427 ₱ 27,932,471 ₱ 34,009,090
Net Book Value  ₱ -  ₱

183,570
 ₱   54,634  ₱           1  ₱  122,072  ₱   7,333,568  ₱ 16,133,370

The value of the Bank premises, construction in progress, leasehold rights and improvements, furniture, 
fixtures and equipment , transportation equipment, information technology and other office equipment 
of ₱ 23,285,860 net of accumulated depreciation,  as of December 31, 2018 is 28% of the Bank's total net 
worth. This is lower than the 50% maximum ratio required under BSP regulation (MORB Subsec.160.2).

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

This account consists of:

A reconciliation of the Accumulated Depreciation of the Bank’s Investment Properties at the beginning 
and end of 2018 and 2017 is shown in below:

2018 2017

Building  ₱  3,315,500  ₱  2,991,731

Less: Accumulated Depreciation  464,444  74,810

Net Amount  2,851,056  2,916,921

Less: Allowance for Credit Losses  381,683  -  

Net Carrying Amount  ₱  2,469,373  ₱  2,916,921

2018 2017

Balance at beginning of year net of accumulated 
depreciation and Impairment loss

 ₱   74,810  ₱  74,810

Additions  67,967  -  

Adjustments  321,666  -  

Balance at end of year net of accumulated depreciation 
and Impairment loss

 ₱ 464,443  ₱  74,810110
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13. OTHER ASSETS

The Accounts Receivable represents various advances and payments made by the bank of various 
expenses and/or transactions and were charged to the respective accounts of the beneficiaries subject to 
liquidation.  Prepaid Expenses are future expenses that have been paid in advance.

The movements in allowance for credit losses on receivable from customers follow:

14. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Savings Deposits are composed of regular savings accounts which are withdrawable upon demand and 
those with special terms and withdrawable at certain period of time. Time Deposits have different 
maturity dates maximum of which is five (5) years term/maturity and bear different interest rates based on 
the amount of deposits and term of placements. Time deposits with term of five (5) years or more are 
exempt from tax in accordance with BIR regulation. Total deposits for the year increased by ₱ 122,155,802 
or 74.96% over the figures of 2017.

Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to ₱ 2,197,506 and 
₱ 867,682, respectively.

This account is consists of:

2018 2017

Accounts receivable  ₱  6,917,898  ₱  5,587,518

Petty cash fund  20,000  10,000

Stationery and supplies on hand  488,681  153,116

Security deposit  549,542  518,410

Prepaid expense  94,384  31,396

Miscellaneous asset  -   2,704

Deferred Charges  -   29,451

Total  8,070,504  6,332,595

Less:  Allowance for Credit Losses  2,274,058  1,099,854

Net Other Assets  ₱  5,796,446  ₱  5,232,741

2018 2017

Balance at beginning of year  ₱  1,099,854  ₱  1,099,854

Provision for credit losses  1,174,204  -  

Balance at end of year  ₱  2,274,058  ₱  1,099,854

This account is consists of:

2018 % 2017 %

Saving Deposit  ₱  231,004,689 81%  ₱ 161,980,659 100%
Time Deposit  863,332 0%  338,162 0%
Demand Deposit  53,248,850 19%  642,248 0%
Total Deposit Liabilities  ₱  285,116,871 100%  ₱ 162,961,069 100%
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16. OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable represents various liabilities incurred by the Bank for its own account and the third 
parties arising from short term indebtedness/obligations still outstanding at the cut-off/ reporting date. 
Withholding tax payable represents tax withheld on interest expense on deposits, on compensation and 
other transactions on which the bank is obliged to withhold as a withholding agent of the government. 
SSS, Medicare and Pag-ibig Contribution are employee’s contribution which are to be remitted by the 
Bank on January, 2019.
 
17. EQUITY ACCOUNTS

Ordinary Shares

The ordinary shareholders of the bank are given less priority as to assets liquidation compared to outside 
creditors and preferred shareholders. Ordinary shares are given equal rights and preference as among 
ordinary shareholders. The availability of dividends shall be determined by the net income after deducting 
any restriction for reserve requirements and preferred dividends, if any.

Authorized ordinary share capital as of December 31, 2018 amounted to ₱ 300,000,000 or 3,000,000 shares 
with a par value of ₱ 100 each. Total subscribed ordinary shares amounted to ₱ 120,000,000 or 1,200,000 
shares and paid up ordinary shares amounted to ₱ 68,117,500 or 681, 175 shares as of December 31, 2018.

Under Circular 854 dated October 29, 2014, Thrift Banks with head office only outside NCR are required to 
comply with the minimum capital of ₱ 200 Million within five (5) years. A capital build up program is also 
required to be submitted to the BSP within one (1) year from date of the circular's effectivity.

As of December 31, 2018, with prescribe in BSP Circular No. 854 series of 2014 Subsection X111.1 Minimum 
Capitalization, the Bank has not met the required capital amounted to ₱ 68,117,500.

The reconciliation of number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period is as follows:

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Accounts Payable  ₱ 26,453,953  ₱ 10,726,549

Unearned Income  -   299,700

Withholding Tax Payable  50,728  45,067

Miscellaneous Liabilities  -   48,657

Overages  -   -  

SSS, Medicare, Pag-ibig Payable  36,584  14,662

Total  ₱ 26,541,266  ₱ 11,134,635
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2018 2017

Common stock Shares Amount Shares Amount
Common stock - 100 par value,3,000,000 
authorized shares

 3,000,000 ₱ 300,000,000  3,000,000 ₱ 300,000,000

Subscribed 750,000 common shares at P100 
per value per share

 750,000  75,000,000  750,000  75,000,000

Common stock at the beginning of the year  681,175  68,117,500  701,175  70,117,500

Issuance of shares of stocks from settlement 
of subscriptions receivable

 -   -   120,000  12,000,000

Common stock at the end of the year  681,175 ₱ 68,117,500  581,175 ₱ 58,117,500
Additional  -   -   100,000  10,000,000
Total  681,175 ₱ 68,117,500  681,175 ₱ 68,117,500

The reconciliation of retained earnings free during the period is as follows:

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that it complies with externally 
imposed capital requirements and that it maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order 
to support its business and to maximize shareholders' value. The Bank maintains sufficient capital 
necessary to support its primary purpose and/or undertakings which it has initiated and promoted. The 
Bank management involves maintaining funding capacity to accommodate fluctuations in asset and 
liability levels due to changes in the Bank's business operations of unanticipated events created by 
consumer behavior or capital market conditions.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic 
conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 
issue capital securities.

Regulatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank’s compliance with regulatory requirements 
and ratios is based on the amount of the Bank’s unimpaired capital (regulatory net worth) reported to the 
BSP, determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from PFRS in some aspects.

Retained Earnings - Free

2018 2017

Balance, Beginning (Deficit)  ₱   5,871,440  ₱ (5,246,713)

Net Income (Loss)  8,269,679  (196,988)

Provision and Adjustments  (896,250)  11,315,141

Balance, Ending  ₱ 13,244,869  ₱   5,871,440
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Under current banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not be less than an 
amount equal to ten percent (10.00%) of its risk assets. The qualifying capital of the Bank for purposes of 
determining the capital-to-risk assets ratio to total equity excludes:

• unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by the BSP;
• total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations to directors, officers, stakeholders and related 
interests (DOSRI);
• deferred tax asset or liability; and
• other regulatory deductions.

Risk assets consist of total assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-out 
or assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letters of credit to the extent covered by margin 
deposits, and other non-risk items as determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP.

Financial Performance

The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Bank:

Below are the selective quantitative indicators and other ratios relative to the bank:

A. RETURN ON AVERAGE EQUITY

2018 2017

Return on Average Equity 10.65% -0.28%
Return on Average Assets 2.58% -0.08%
Net Interest Margin 5.35% 1.64%
Debt to Equity Ratio 3.83:1 2.35:1
Earnings Per Share  12,14  (0.29)
Book Value Per Share  119.44  108.62

2018 2017

Net Income ₱ 8,269,679 ₱ (196,987)

Average Equity

2018  81,362,369

2017  73,988,941

2017  73,988,941

2016  64,870,787

Total ₱ 155,351,311 ₱ 138,859,728

Average Equity ₱ 77,675,655 ₱ 69,429,864

Return on Average Equity 10.65% -0.28%

114



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net Income ₱ 8,269,679 ₱ (196,987)

Average Assets

2018  393,421,199

2017  248,212,909

2017  248,212,909

2016  224,349,124

Total ₱ 641,634,109 ₱ 472,562,033

Average Asset ₱ 320,817,054 ₱ 236,281,017

Return on Average Assets 2.58% -0.08%

Net Interest Income ₱ 13,358,608 ₱ 2,604,758
Average Interest Earnings Assets

2018  295,210,349

2017  203,730,659

2017  203,730,659

2016  113,278,833

Total ₱ 498,941,008 ₱ 317,009,492

Average Interest Earning Asset ₱ 249,470,504 ₱ 158,504,746

Net Interest Margin 5.35% -1.64%

B. RETURN ON AVERAGE ASSETS

C. NET INTEREST MARGIN

D. DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

Total Liabilities ₱ 312,058,830 ₱ 174,223,969

Total Equity ₱ 81,362,679 ₱ 73,988,941

Ratio of Debt to Equity  3.83  2.35

Debt to Equity Ratio  3.83:1  2.35:1115
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E. EARNINGS PER SHARE

F. BOOK VALUE PER SHARE

18. OTHER INCOME

19. COMPENSATION & FRINGE BENEFITS

Net Income ₱ 8,269,679 ₱ (196,987)
Number of Shares - Ordinary  681,175  681,175

Earnings Per Share - Ordinary ₱ 12.14 ₱ (0.29)

Total Equity ₱ 81,362,369 ₱ 73,988,941
Number of Shares - Ordinary  681,175  681,175

Book Value Per Share - Ordinary ₱ 119.44 ₱ 108.62

This account consists of the following:

2018 2017

Service Charges  ₱  15,375,207  ₱   5,284,219

ATM Service Fees  2,177,304  3,097,108

Miscellaneous Income  1,719,321  2,059,295

Recovery on Charge of Assets  289,605  354,993

Income (Loss) from foreign Exchange  95,166  (77,554)

Total  ₱  19,656,603  ₱ 10,718,061

This account consists of the following:

2018 2017

Salaries and Wages  ₱  4,967,136  ₱  2,700,497

Directors Compensation & Committee Member's Fee  209,417  35,000

Fringe Benefits-Officers and Employees  225,133  98,944

SSS, Pag-ibig, Philhealth Contribution and Medical  443,506  221,613

13TH Month Pay and Allowances  421,656  855,793

Total  ₱  6,266,848  ₱  3,911,846
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20. RETIREMENT PLAN
As of December 31, 2018 the Bank doesn’t have any established Retirement plan for its employees.

21. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:

2018 2017

Fees and commission ₱ 1,512,793 ₱ 1,951,001

Postage, Telephone & Telegram  1,494,766  524,739

Stationeries and Supplies Used  1,431,680  467,762

Rent  1,301,990  1,133,590

Miscellaneous  815,586  233,428

Power, Light & Water  814,922  412,705

Security, Messenger & Janitorial Services  671,327  196,900

Insurance-PDIC  492,950  160,360

Travelling  452,343  275,694

Fuel, Oil & Lubricants  334,114  75,546

Meals  327,514  69,639

Professional fees  317,732  522,004

Management and Other Professional Fees  300,000  14,324

Representation and Entertainment  267,541  -  

Membership Fees and Dues  174,104  61,040

Documentary Stamp used  125,400  15,995

Fines and Penalties and Other Charges  96,057  93,311

Legal Fees  74,795  13,687

Training and Seminars  62,000  58,550

Donation and Charitable Contributions  34,995

Collection Expenses  34,555  312

Repairs and Maintenance  24,598  20,721

Notarial Expenses  24,130  16,944

Insurance- Cash in Vault  20,652  10,143

Insurance- others  8,923  15,214

Litigation/assets acquired expense  4,244  5,504

Advertising & Publicity  2,760  1,318

Supervision Fees-BSP  -   17,289

Bad debts  -   125,955

Total  ₱ 11,222,472  ₱ 6,493,675
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22. DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION

23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the bank:

Lease commitments
The Bank leases where its branches are located. The lease transactions is classified by the Bank under 
operating lease where total rental payments are charged to current operation spread-over the term of 
the lease. Total rent expense arising from this transaction amounted to ₱ 1,301,990 and 
₱ 1,133,590 in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Bank is leasing premises which was started on January 01, 2017 and will expire on December 31, 
2021 with monthly rental of ₱ 14,000 exclusive of VAT and withholding tax of 5% would directly to the 
Phil. Gov't and shall provide copy of the WT Certificate (BIR Form 2307) to the LESSOR together with 
the monthly rental payment. This contract shall be effective from the date of execution until 
terminated in accordance with the succeeding paragraphs hereof. This contract is renewable at the 
sole discretion of the LESSOR. In the event the LESSOR opts to renew the contract, the LESSOR may 
exercise the right of renewal by giving a written notice within sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of 
the contract.

The Bank is sub-leasing premises which started on September 01, 2018 and will expire on August 2023 
or a five (5) years contract with rental escalation of five percent (5%) every year thereafter beginning 
on the second year of this sublease agreement. This Sublease Agreement may be renewed upon the 
mutual consent of the parties. The SUBLESSE shall inform the SUBLESSOR in writing its intent to 
renew this sublease agreement at least three (3) month/s prior to the expiration of the same. The 
renewal of this Sublease Agreement is subject to negotiation, the strict compliance by the Sublease to 
all the rules and regulations of the SBMA and the terms and condition of this Sublease Agreement.

This account is consists of:

2018 2017

Amortization  Expense - Software  ₱  1,292,981  ₱  1,300,087

Depreciation Expense -Information Technology  1,101,182  1,132,326

Amortization Expense - Leasehold Rights and Improvements  720,911  63,989

Depreciation Expense -  Transportation Equipment  14,132  -  

Depreciation Expense - Other Office Equipment  155,956  56,317

Depreciation Expense -  FF&E  137,812  10,038

Depreciation Expense- ROPA  67,967  3,231

Total  ₱  3,490,941  ₱  2,565,988

2018 2017

Within one year  ₱628,800  ₱168,000

Beyond one year but not beyond five years  4,401,216  672,000

More than five years  3,280,632  -  

Total  ₱8,310,648  ₱840,000
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Other commitments and contingencies
a.) The bank is a plaintiff to various cases arising from the collection suits pending in courts for claims against 
delinquent borrowers of the bank. The final decision of which cannot be determined at present.

b.) The bank has a pending legal cases arising from its normal operation that will put the bank as defendant 
as a result of violation of transactions.

c.)The bank had no outstanding issuances of bank guarantee and other similar credit instruments that will 
put the bank into obligation in case of non-compliance by the buyer.

d.) The bank had no outstanding outward and inward bills for collection at the end of the year.

24. INCOME TAXES

The bank is registered with Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority as a Subic Bay Freeport Zone Enterprise under 
Republic Act 7227, otherwise known as The Bases Conversion and Development Act of 1992. As a SBF 
registered enterprise, the Bank is subject to 5% preferential tax rate on gross income earned as a defined 
under R.A 7227 in lieu of all national and local taxes. The Bank is also entitled to the rights, privileges and 
benefits provided under R.A 7227 and its implementing rules and regulations such as but not limited to tax 
and duty free importation of raw materials, capital equipment and household and personal items for use only 
within the SBF Zone.

Per Revenue Regulations No. 13-2005, allowable deduction is removed in the calculation of gross income. For 
financial enterprises, gross income shall include interest income, gains from sales and other income, net cost 
of funds.

Under the Philippine tax laws, the bank is subject to percentage and other taxes as well as income taxes. 
Percentage and other taxes paid consist primarily of gross receipts tax (GRT) and documentary stamp tax 
(DST)

Computation of Income Tax:

2018

Gross Income Per Books  ₱  9,271,649

Temporary Difference

Other Non-Deductible expense   10,455,229
Impairment Loss   137,206
Provision for Credit Losses on Loans and 

Receivables
 2,588,532

Permanent Difference

Interest expense reduced by 33% income subject 
to final tax

 1,694,389

Interest Income Subject to Final Tax  (4,107,610)

Net Taxable Income (Loss) 20,039,395

Tax Rate 5%
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Normal Corporate Income Tax  1,001,970

Minimum Corporate Income Tax  400,788

Income Tax Due  1,001,970

Less: Payments/Tax Credits

Agency- 2%  317,437

BIR-3%  476,156

Income Tax Still Due/(Overpayment)  ₱  208,377

In computing the MCIT of the bank, cost of services of the bank compromises of interest expense & direct 
operating expenses.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party 
or exercise significant influence over the other party making financial and operating decisions. Parties are 
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related 
parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

A. Key management personnel, close family members of key management personnel and entities;

B. Which are controlled, significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power is held;

C. By key management personnel or their close family members;

D. Post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of the Bank’s employees

The Bank has several business relationships with related parties. Transactions with such parties are made in 
the ordinary course of business and on substantially same terms, including interest and collateral, as those 
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other parties. These transactions also did not involve 
more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable conditions.

Remunerations of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly. The Bank considers the members of the senior 
management to constitute key management personnel for purposes of PAS 24.

Regulatory Reporting

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loan transactions with certain directors, officers, 
stockholders and related interest (DOSRI). Under existing policies of the Bank, these loans are made 
substantially on the same terms as loans to other individuals and businesses of comparable risk. The amount 
of individual loans to DOSRI, of which seventy (70%) must be secured, should not exceed the amount of his 
deposits and book value of his paid-in capital in the Bank. In the aggregate, loans to DOSRI should not 
exceed the Bank's total capital funds or fifteen percent (15%) of the Bank's total loan portfolio, whichever is 
lower. As of December 31, 2018, the bank has no DOSRI to their book. 120
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Below are the selected ratios relative to the Banks' DOSRI loan accounts.

2018 2017

A. Aggregate Ceiling

1. Total Loan Portfolio  ₱ 54,015,161  ₱ 23,001,261

2. 15% of #1  8,102,274  3,450,189

3. Adjusted Capital per FRP  81,885,131  73,988,941

4. Item A.2 or A.3 whichever is lower  ₱   8,102,274  ₱  3,450,189

B. Ceiling on Unsecured Loans

1. Secured DOSRI loans  ₱-  ₱-

2. Unsecured DOSRI loans  -   -  

3. Total  -   -  

4. 30% of Item A.4  2,430,682  1,035,057

5. 30% of B.3  -   -  

6. Item B.4 or B.5 whichever is lower  ₱  2,430,682  ₱  1,035,057

C. Compliance with Aggregate Ceiling (Item A.4 -B.3)  ₱  8,102,274  ₱ 3,450,189

D. Compliance with Ceiling on Outstanding Unsecured Loans 
(Item B.6-B.2)

 ₱2,430,682  ₱1,035,057

E. Percent of DOSRI loan to total loan portfolio

DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

Total loan portfolio  ₱ 54,015,161  ₱ 23,001,261

0.00% 0.00%

F. Percent of unsecured DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans

Unsecured DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

Total DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

0.00% 0.00%

G. Percent of past due DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans

Past Due DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

Total DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

0.00% 0.00%

H. Percent of non-performing DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans

Non-performing DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

Total DOSRI loan  ₱-  ₱-

0.00% 0.00%
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26. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER REVENUE REGULATION NO. 
15-2010
 
On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR 15-2010 prescribing the manner of compliance in connection with the 
preparation and submission of financial statements accompanying the tax returns. It includes provisions for 
additional disclosure requirements in the notes to the financial statements, particularly on taxes and licenses 
paid or accrued during the year. The components of ‘Taxes and licenses’ recognized in the statement of income 
for the year ended December 31, 2018, follow:

Documentary Stamp

Pursuant to revenue regulation No. 13-2004 dated December 23, 2004 " Implementing provisions of Republic 
Act No.9243, an act rationalizing the provisions of the documentary stamp tax of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1997 (as amended), below are some of the circular affecting the operation of bank and non-bank financial 
intermediaries:

 

The Bank does not have any outstanding tax cases under preliminary investigation, litigation and/or 
prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR at December 31, 2018.

GRT in 2018 consists of taxes on:

2018

Interest income on loans  ₱ 11,448,505

Other income  19,656,603

Total  ₱ 31,105,108

Taxes and Licenses

a. Local

Business Permit  ₱ 6,600

Others  30,463  37,063

b. National

Annual Registration-BIR  500  500

Total-Taxes and Licenses  ₱   37,563
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27. OTHER MATTERS

1. Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)

The Bank had completely satisfied the reporting requirements as required by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 
(BSP) and RA 9160 as amended by RA 9194 otherwise known as the Anti-Money Laundering Act.

2. As of December 31, 2018, all of the bank's directors had undergone the requirements for corporate 
government as confirmed by the Monetary Board as mandated by MORB Subsec. X147.4.

28. AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF SECURED LIABILITIES AND ASSETS PLEDGED
As of December 31, 2018, the bank has no secured liabilities and assets pledged.
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MISSION,
VISION AND
MESSAGES
Mision
Vision
Chairman’s Message
President’s Message

MILESTONES
Positive Result of Operations
Soaring BSP Ratings
Improved Financial Ratio
Net Income Positive

SIGNIFICANT 
PROGRESS
Social Media Boost
More OFWS Served

EVENTS & 
ACTIVITIES
Blessing of the new Headquarters
Painting the Banaue Room
Farmers Congress
Renovation of ROPAs

SERVICES & 
PROGRAMS
Banking on Wheels
AGAP Program
Savings Products
Loan Products
Checking Products

UPDATES ON 
OPERATIONS
From Manila to Subic
Times Square Complex Reconstruction

FINANCIAL 
HIGHLIGHTS
Capital Structure
Capital Adequacy

RISK 
MANAGEMENT
Framework
Administration
Structure

ANTI-MONEY
LAUNDERING
Governance & Culture
Risk Management  Status

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
Structure and Practices
Board Composition
Major Duties & Responsibilities
Major Functions of Board of Directors
Qualifications of BOD
Selection Process of BOD & Key Directors
Performance Assessment Program
Basis of Assessment
Directors Regular Meeting Attendance
Audit Committee
Orientation and Education Program
Retirement & Succession Policy
Remuneration Policy
Dividend Policy
Related Party Transactions
Corporate Social Responsibility

124



CONSUMER
PROTECTION
Consumer Assistance Management 
System (CAMS)
Policies and Procedures
Compliance Program
Internal Audit Function
Training

ORGANIZATIONAL 
STRUCTURE
President and Key Officers
Major Stakeholders

AUDITED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT
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